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Notice of the 62nd
Annual General Meeting

SOUTH PORT SLSC Inc.  
NOTICE OF 62nd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
Date:  		  Sunday, 31 July 2022
Time: 		  11:00am 
Location: 	 South Port SLSC 
 
Notice is hereby given that the 62nd AGM of the South Port Surf Life Saving Club Inc. will be held at the Clubhouse on 
Sunday 31 July 2022 at 11am.

AGENDA OF 62nd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

1. 	 Welcome address.
		  1.1. President’s welcome.

2. 	 Apologies and proxies.

3. 	 Confirmation of minutes of the 61st Annual General Meeting of 29 August 2021.

4. 	 Business arising from the minutes of previous AGM.

5. 	 Presentation, consideration and adoption of the 62nd Annual Report.

6. 	 Presentation, consideration and adoption of the 62nd Annual Financial Statement.
		  Financial Statement has been sent out to members with the notice of meeting and agenda.

7. 	 Deal with any Notices of Motion(s).

8. 	 Consideration of Nomination/s for Life Membership/s.

9. 	 Declaration of President, Secretary, Senior Life Saving Education Officer, Member Development Officer, Junior 
    	 Development Chairperson and Marketing and Sponsorship Officer positions vacant.

10. 	 Declaration of Treasurer position being vacant for a one-year period.
		  No election required for the following:
		  Vice President: 		  Penny McKenzie

		  Club Captain: 		  Lyndon Mills

		  Surf Sports Manager: 	 Kylie Cederblad

		  Facilities Manager: 	 Mark Dobson

11.	  Election of Officers of the Club for season 2022/23:
		  2 Year Positions (BOM):
		  President

		  Secretary

		  Senior Life Saving Education Officer

		  Member Development Officer

		  Junior Development Chairperson

		  Marketing and Sponsorship Officer

		  1 Year Positions (BOM)
		  Treasurer
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		  1 Year Positions – BOM Office Bearers
		  Vice-Captain

		  Gear Steward

		  First Aid Officer

		  IRB Captain

		  Radio Officer

		  Canteen Manager

		  Apparel Officer

		  Environmental Officer

		  Starfish Program Coordinator

		  Grants Officer

		  Function Manager

		  Senior Registration Officer

		  Policy Officer

		  Club Gymnasium Manager

		  Assistant Policy Officer

		  Awards of Excellence Coordinator

		  Awards Registrar

		  Bar Manager

		  Assistant Secretary

		  Social Media Officer

		  Social Officer

		  Patrons 					    Mayor/Federal and State MP’s to be invited

		  Vice Patrons 				    Ward Councillors & Mid Coast Surf Reserve Chair

		  Auditor 					    Accru Harris Orchard for 2021/22 season

		  Club Designated Photographers

		  Masters Coordinator

		  Officials Coordinator

		  Senior Team Manager

		  Boat Coach/Captain

		  Ski Coach/Captain

		  Board Coach/Captain

		  March Past Captain/Coordinator

		  Beach Coach/Captain

		  Swim Coach

		  IRB racing Coach/Captain

		  Life Saving Events Coach

		  R & R Coach

12. 	 Consideration and adoption of subscriptions for and other amounts payable by Members and Officers for season 
	 2022/23.
	
	 The Board of Management endorses that membership fees for 2022/23 season should increase after being put on hold 

	 for the last two seasons due to the COVID pandemic and is seeking endorsement from members:

	
		  12.1 Membership Fees:
		  Community 		  $60

		  Seniors 			  $195

		  Family 			   $310

		  Under 18s 		  $120

Notice of the 62nd
Annual General Meeting
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		  Associate		  $120

		  Gym 			   $350

		  Moved: Nicole Berry Seconded: Ian Hodgen

		  12.2 Competition Fees:
		  All competing members to pay the appropriate fee to the Club before entries will be accepted.

		
		  Moved: Nicole Berry Seconded: Ian Hodgen

13. Determine the maximum amount that the Board of Management may expend on any one item for season 2022/2023
		

		  1. Maximum amount of spend to be $30,000.

		  Moved: Nicole Berry Seconded: Sara Lane

14. General Business.

		  14.1. Presentation of Long Service Awards. SLSA 60 and 50 Year Long Service Awards will be presented 

		  to the following members:

		  60 Year
		  Geoffrey Price

		
		  50 Year
		  Simon Linden

		  Robin Atkinson

		  Raymond Martin

		  Dennis Ferrett

	 Meeting Closed.

Nicole Berry
Secretary
7 July 2022

Notice of the 62nd
Annual General Meeting



62nd Annual Report
7

Senior Office Bearers

Assistant Secretary 
Vice-Captain
Gear Steward
IRB Captain
First Aid Officer
Radio Officer
Bar Manager
Canteen Manager
Apparel Officer
Environmental Officer
Grants Officer
Functions Manager
Policy Officer		       Masters Coordinator
Social Media Officer	      Social Officer
Website Officer	      Assistant Member 
Gym Manager 	         Development Officer 
Awards Registrar 	         (formerly Saturday 
Senior Competition 	         Youth Coordinator)
Starfish Program 	      Swim Coach
 Coordinator		       Lifesaving Events Coach
Awards of Excellence      Assistant Policy Officer
  Coordinator		       Boat Coach/Captain	
Ski Coach/Captain	      Senior Registration	
Board Coach/Captain	          Officer
Beach Coach/Captain 	     March Past Coach/
Club Photographers 	          Captain	                 
R&R Coach		        Officials Coordinator 	      

Management
Structure

Surf Life
Saving

Australia

Surf Life
Saving

South Australia

Board of Management

President		      Senior Lifesaving Education Officer

Vice President	     Surf Sports Manager

Secretary		      Member Development Officer

Treasurer		      Marketing and Sponsorship Officer

Club Captain	 	     Junior Development Chairperson

Facilities Manager

Executive

President

Vice President

Secretary

Treasurer

Club Captain

To deal with

 emergencies

Decisions to be 

 ratified by BOM

Junior Development Panel

Junior Dev. Chairperson

Junior Registrar

Junior Administrator

Junior Coach

Starfish Program

  Coordinator

Junior Minutes/ 

  Documentation 

  Officer

Junior Lifesaving 

   Education Officer

Panels

Junior Development

Judiciary/Disciplinary

Life Membership/Hall  	

  of Fame

Finance

Building

Constitution

Life Saving Education

  and Patrol

Coaching and 

  Competition

Environment, Health   

  and Safety Panel

Social Panel

Junior Office Bearers
Junior Registration   
  Officer
Junior Team Manager
Jnr. Competition Officer
Board Coordinator
Pool Swim Coach
Saturday Swim 
  Coordinator/Coach
Beach Sprint 
  Coordinator
Wades Coordinator
March Past Coordinator
March Past Uniforms   
  Coordinator
Age Group Managers
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Board Of Management
2021-2022

Position Holder

President Richard Olesinski OAM

Vice President Penny McKenzie

Secretary Nicole Berry

Treasurer Ian Hodgen

Club Captain Lyndon Mills

Senior Lifesaving Education Officer Noelene Lee

Surf Sports Manager Kylie Cederblad

Facilities Manager Mark Dobson

Member Development Officer Aaron Oliver

Marketing and Sponsorship Officer Sara Lane

Junior Development Panel Chairperson Danni Hansen
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Officer Bearers of the Club
2021-2022

Position Holder

Patrons (Mayor/MP’s)
Amanda Rishworth, Chris Picton, Katrine Hildyard, 
Erin Thompson.

Vice Patrons (Mid Coast Surfing Reserve 
Chair/Ward Councillors)

Sue Bennett, Bill Jamieson, Suzanne Tonkin.

President Richard Olesinski OAM

Vice President Penny McKenzie

Secretary Nicole Berry

Treasurer Ian Hodgen

Club Captain Lyndon Mills

Assistant Secretary Deb Sinclair/Vacant

Senior Lifesaving Education Officer Noelene Lee

Surf Sports Manager Kylie Cederblad

Junior Development Panel Chairperson Danni Hansen

Member Development Officer Aaron Oliver

Facilities Manager Mark Dobson

Bar Manager Marsha Smith

Marketing and Sponsorship Officer Sara Lane

Social Officer Vacant

Vice-Captain Tom McKenzie

IRB Captain John Charles

Radio Officer Lyndon Mills

First Aid Officer Leigh Chirgwin

Gear Steward Aaron Oliver

Environmental Officer Carly Lynch

Grants Officer Maggie Botha

Policy Officer Maggie Botha

Canteen Manager Donna Logan

Apparel Officer Sally-Ann Botha

Officials Coordinator Paul Zeitz

Awards Registrar Donna Logan

Awards of Excellence Coordinator Laura Odell
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Officer Bearers of the Club
2021-2022

Position Holder

Senior Registration Officer Nicole Berry

Social Media Officer Laura Odell

Website Officer Laura Odell

Gym Manager David Watt

Functions Manager Belinda Hammond

Senior Competition Officer Kylie Cederblad

Saturday Youth Coordinator Melissa Thomas/Aaron Oliver

Assistant Policy Officer	  Michelle Copley

Boat Coach/Captain Keith Mills

Ski Coach/Captain Sean Lohse

Board Coach/Captain Alex Botha

March Past Coach/Captain Andy Higgs

Beach Coach/Captain Clayton Jones

Swim Coach Alexander Gettie

Masters Coordinator Maggie Botha

Lifesaving Events Coach Vacant

R&R Coach Vacant

CRO’s (Child Safe Officers) Penny McKenzie/Stephen Proctor

Club Designated Photographers Tracy McAvaney, Chloe James, Deb Sinclair, Bradley 
Vogt, Tania Cunningham, Danni Hansen, Kylie Cederblad, 
Simon Munn, Vanda-Lee Giebel and David Atkinson.

Club Chaplain SLSSA Chaplain Service

Auditor ACCRU Harris Orchard
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Junior Development Panel
2021-2022

Position Holder

Junior Competition Officer Tracy McAvaney

Junior Team Manager Cassandra Stoodley

Board Coordinator Alex Botha

Pool Swim Coordinator/Junior Swim Coach Alex Botha and Alex Gettie

Swim Assistant Vacant

Saturday Swim Coordinator Aaron Oliver

Beach Sprint Coordinator Clayton Jones

Beach Flags Coordinator Clayton Jones

Wades Coach/Coordinator Vacant

March Past Coordinator Anna Fisher

March Past Uniform Coordinator Nicole Howse

Position Holder

Junior Development Chairperson Danni Hansen

Junior Coach Alex Botha

Junior Administrator Chloe James

Junior Administrator Assistant Debra Oliver

Junior Registrar Olivia Harsing and Anna Fisher

Junior Registration Officer Vacant, Nicole Berry covered the role in 2021/22

Junior Minutes/Documentation Officer Cassandra Stoodley

Junior Life Saving Education Officer Brett Fisher

Starfish Program Coordinator Mark Whitmee

Position Age Group Manager/Coordinator 
(training to be completed by some)

Age Group Assistants

Under 6/7 Megan Syvertsen/Kate Liersch -

Under 8 Shaun James and Gabrielle Peterson -

Under 9 Zack Rodriguez and Stacey Rylander Kristian Hansen

Under 10 Andrew Stoodley and Nicholas Mangos Kade Stoodley

Under 11 Joe Thomas and Sara Burrows Summer Thomas

Under 12 Sue Williams and James Burrows -

Under 13 Robyn Gilligan Daniel Vogt and Kirsty-Lee Jones

Junior Age Group Managers/Coordinators and Assistants

Junior Office Bearers
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After another COVID-19 impacted, but highly successful record-breaking season, I’m pleased to report that 
again importantly no lives were lost on our beach. 

Over the past busy season, 8 lives were saved by our members, 877 preventative actions, this being 
persons stopped from endangering themselves, over 400 more than the previous season and 74 first aid 
cases administered. All this achieved under severe duress with our toilets and changerooms being 
renovated for most of the season.

Many thanks to all our patrolling members who continued to ensure our high standard of patrolling and 
keeping South Port Beach safe for all swimmers, surfers and visitors. 

As reported in previous seasons, our patrols continue to be challenged with increased local population 
growth. It’s more than evident that many more community members are making South Port their beach to 
enjoy with beach visitation numbers continuing to increase.

Our patrol statistics continue to substantiate the need for us to be where we are and for ALL of us, 
managing the challenges to ensure that we remain sustainable into the future.

With again many highlights the past season none of which would have been achieved if it was not for our 
numerous volunteers.  

Major highlights included:
-	 Continuing to maintain healthy membership numbers with 555 members, which included 149 Junior 
	 members.
-	 Operating successfully with the majority of the season being impacting on by the Club’s toilets and 
	 changerooms being redeveloped. HUGE thanks to the City of Onkaparinga and Federal Government 
	 support to ensure our members and visitors have access to modern facilities.
-	 Wearing Street gym, emergency services and training area facility nearing commencement for 
	 construction.
-	 The Club’s BarFlys continue to work behind the scenes to keep the Club neat and tidy, and stocks 
	 delivered – many thanks to all involved.
-	 Continuing to build on the successful Surf Babies and Little Lifesavers program – a great way of 
	 having past members get involved again with their young children.
-	 Competitively the Club continues to improve greatly, in particular within our youth area. Big thanks 
	 to Kylie Cederblad for her guidance of our growing group of senior competitors.

Congratulations to our new bronze medallion recipients and our Juniors continuing their surf life saving 
journey and completing their Surf Resuscitation Certificates. The Juniors are our future and we look forward 
to assisting you, particularly through the transition area, again well managed by Aaron Oliver and helpers.

Thanks also to the Board of Management and to all members who took on Committee positions the past 
season. The Club desperately needs more members to volunteer to help share the workload and I look 
forward to some new faces getting involved as with new members, new ideas naturally evolve.

Congratulations to all of our competitors, Juniors, Seniors and Masters who continue to wear the South 
Port cap proudly and did their best in representing the Club. It was pleasing to see members be successful 
at the Australian Championships and in particular Zalika Cederblad and Sadie Proctor winning a Silver Medal 

President’s Report
Richard ‘Olly’ Olesinski OAM
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in the U17 2Km Relay Beach event, the Club’s first Australian medal in the beach area. To all our coaches, 
thank you for your commitment to helping South Port be a well-recognised competitive Club throughout 
the nation.

Thanks again to Junior Chairperson, Danni Hansen and her team of helpers together with Age Group 
Managers and Assistants that guided our Juniors throughout another busy season. 

Sincere appreciation to our Officials who continue to ensure our members are able to compete. I encourage 
any of our members, in particular parents, to put their hands up to help in the important area of health and 
well being activities. 

Thank you to all our partners, sponsors and supporters, in particular Kahini Pty Ltd (SLSSA Trust Fund), the 
City of Onkaparinga, the Federal Government, State Government, through SAFECOM, and major sponsor, 
KFC Seaford Rise. A list of Club sponsors is listed within this report. Many thanks to all for your 
commitment to our essential community service and competitive activities.

The Club’s Sunday Sessions continue to be a great opportunity for members and the broader community to 
be able to enjoy live music, meals and refreshments and the Club generating much needed funds, 
particularly during the ‘off-season’. Thanks to all our volunteers who make these afternoons run so well. 
The Sessions were put on hold due to the COVID-19 situation and toilet renovations but recent reopening 
has proven to again be a great success and major fundraiser for the Club.

I would like to pass on my huge thanks to Nicole Berry for her multiple roles as not only Assistant Secretary 
but Secretary and numerous others for the past 9 years on the Board of Management and on panels. Her 
commitment to working together with numerous members and external entities has always focused on the 
best outcome for the Club. As she is stepping down as Secretary, on behalf of all of our members, many 
thanks again to Nicole and we look forward to seeing her continue to volunteer her time in some capacity 
at the Club.

Effective communication is a key to success, and again, Laura Odell has continued to make sure members 
are kept well up to date with what’s happening in and around the Club. Many thanks Laura.

Finally, I’d like to sincerely thank Mark ‘Dobbo’ Dobson, the Club’s Facilities Manager for his unbelievable 
contributions in ensuring our ‘behind the scenes’ operations are successfully managed, in particular with 
our Council ‘go-to-man’, Ian Bradshaw. Not many members are aware of the number of hours he volunteers, 
so on behalf of all Club members, thanks Dobbo! 

In closing, thanks again to all of our members and sponsors for your support. As a Club, I believe we are 
well placed to maintain growth to keep South Port Beach safe for all and to continue to be successful into 
the future.

Richard ‘Olly’ Olesinski OAM

President’s Report... CONT
Richard ‘Olly’ Olesinski OAM
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President’s Report Photos
Richard ‘Olly’ Olesinski OAM
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Well, there goes another jam packed, fun filled season! They really seem to roll by faster with each year. 
How awesome do our new changeroom facilities look! It was a bit crazy navigating the best part of the 
season with only a third of the Club opened, but in true South Port style, we handled it like a boss! A huge 
thanks to those involved in making it happen!

This season saw us continue to deal with the COVID pandemic and the goal posts kept getting shifted as 
rules and regulations constantly changed. We became masters of flexibility and resilience, especially when 
it came to Junior carnivals. A massive thanks goes out to all the members who got their COVID Marshal 
Certificate and assisted with marshalling at carnivals and the Club.

Member numbers were down slightly. We lost quite a few members, but it nearly balanced out with over 
100 new members this season. The breakdown of membership numbers are as follows: 

					     2021/22	 2020/21	 2019/20
Juniors (Nippers aged 5-12)		 151		  170		  142
Under 14-15 (Youth)			  22		  22		  25
Under 17’s				    16		  12		  9
Under 19’s				    14		  18		  16
Under 21’s				    14		  12		  8
21 and up				    350		  358		  287

Total					     567		  597		  487

Our Social Media Platforms continue to show a strong following: 

Club Website	 			   111		  117		  114
Team App				    317		  256		  202
Facebook (main group)		  528		  497		  457
Instagram				    1076		  894		  N/A

Our Child Safety Management continues to go from strength to strength. We have now got over 90% of 
our 18+ membership having completed their WWCC. Those members who have had theirs expire or have 
not yet provided one will be contacted in the coming weeks to ensure that they have this requirement com-
pleted before the start of the 2022/23 season. 

Surf Babies was very successful again in its second year at South Port, hosted by the wonderful Daniel 
Vogt and Amber Smith. The kids adored them! We look forward to hosting the program again next season.

We are also very excited to be hosting the Vac Swim program for the first time at South Port in 2022/23, 
with the program due to be held in December and also hosted by Daniel! Keep an eye out for more 
information later in the year!

Congratulations to all the competitors for their outstanding successes throughout the season. Kudos to the 
Surf Sports team, led by Kylie, Alex, Clayton, Sean, Andy and Keith for looking after our team. 

Secretary’s Report 
Nicole Berry
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Secretary’s Report Cont...
Nicole Berry

A huge and heartfelt thanks goes out to ALL of our hard-working and dedicated volunteers who give their 
time and effort to help make our wonderful Club run efficiently. Without you, we would not function. Most 
importantly no lives were lost at South Port with zero drownings. 

After being on the board of Management as Assistant Secretary and then Secretary for the last 9 years, it 
is time for me to take a step back for a while and allow someone else the opportunity to be involved in the 
best Club on the planet and have as much fun as I have had. I would like to thank each and every person I 
have served alongside on the board and as an office bearer. The friendships I have made and skills I have 
learned will stay with me forever. I will continue to support the Club and help out in any way I can and will 
be here to help the new Secretary transition into the role. 

I know I said this last year, but the saying many hands make light work rings so true, especially in our 
environment. We still need more volunteers. We currently have a small group of people who are juggling 
3-4 roles and have done so for a long time because nobody else puts their hand up. These guys need a hand 
and won’t be around forever. It doesn’t matter how much or how little time you can give. Every little bit 
helps. If you would like to get involved but are not sure how or what you would like to do, please contact 
mail@southportslsc.org.au and we will provide you with the information and support you need. 

Lastly, a special thanks goes to Laura Odell, Kylie Cederblad and Richard Olesinski. The extra work you 
three in particular have taken on with me over the last several years has been nothing short of astounding. 
You are the rocks of South Port. Also, a big thanks to Deb Sinclair for her endless support.

Wishing everyone all the very best for a fantastic 2022/23 season. 

Much love! 😊 
Nicole Berry
Secretary
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Treasurer’s Report
Ian Hodgen

Well, it was another year of disruption due to COVID-19 though we’ve managed as a Club to continue to 
survive and thrive financially, even with my hands on the financial helm! 

Audited financials are based on 1 May 2021 to 30 April 2022.

At the end of FY22 we are in a strong position with $300,323 sitting in the bank and cash equivalents which 
is a modest increase on last FY21$289,830. These available funds continue to position the Club well for 
future development of our members activities and will cover major expenditure such as the new shed at 
Wearing Street, which Council say will get underway later this year (hopefully) and upgrade building works 
around the Club.

The audited accounts included in this Annual Report provide a detailed overview of money in and out for 
those that are interested in the exacting detail of accountants. For those not so inclined below is a highlight 
package but noting this report has been written before the audit has been finalised so it is possible some 
minor adjustments will be made here and there in final numbers if you decide to compare it with the audited 
report...but you’ll still get a good idea where the Clubs money comes and goes!

	 1.	 Sales:  
		  a.	 Bar: Sales for the year were $61,533 and while down once again mainly due to 
			   Covid-19 restrictions the bar still made a healthy profit of $33,065. Thank you to 
			   Marsha Smith, the Bar Flies and all the volunteers for making this possible.
		  b.	 Apparel: Sally Botha has once again done an amazing job keeping South Port ahead 
			   in the fashion stakes to the tune of $19,334 in sales and a profit of $122. Note that 
			   while this may appear a modest profit (which is calculated on standard annual 
			   accounting methods… (well the way Bristles did it anyway!) it is worth noting we are
			   currently holding $11,928 in apparel (at cost) which when sold in the future goes 
			   directly to our bottom line as profit.
		  c.	 Canteen: the canteen operations were greatly curtailed this year due to Club 
			   renovations (and COVID) though Donna Logan did a great job providing a small 
			   service for Nippers on a Saturday and still managed sales of $2,385 and a profit of
			   around $750. (Note the canteen was run in part through bar this year so these 
			   breakdown figures may not be exact but you get the idea!)
	
	 2.	 Fundraising: income for FY22 $17,945 less costs $8,438 = $9,506 profit – drop from last year 
		  due to COVID restrictions however still making money on fundraising activities (e.g., Nippers 
		  bbq/raffle $5,064, 100 Club, footy tips, wine wall, Sunday sessions $3,992). Well done all 
		  involved.
	
	 3.	 Grants, Sponsorship and Donations: A total of $76,289 was received this season. This came
		  from both large sponsors and several smaller sponsors being both members and/or friends
		  of the Club. Big thank you to all and make sure you all continue to support the Club sponsors 
		  big and small! 
		  a.	 Large sponsors, donations, grants:
		  o	 City of Onkaparinga Council Grant $12,721,
		  o	 Festival Foods Pty Ltd (KFC) $10,000
		  o	 CMI Toyota $5,000
		  o	 M F Paterson $5,000
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Treasurer’s Report Cont...
Ian Hodgen

		  o	 Beach Safety Equipment Fund Grant $15,000
		  o	 Australian Sports Foundation $9,000

	 4.	 Operating Expenses: some operating information for those still reading (i.e. money going out 
		  the door):
		  a.	 Competition: includes Tour Team Expenses, Training and State Team Subsidies and 
			   Travelling Expenses, and Carnival Entry Fees (including Juniors)
			   FY22 $14,395	 FY21 $14,759
		  b.	 Equipment: includes Board & Ski Maintenance, Surf Boat Maintenance
			   FY22 $6,118	 FY21 $5,289
		  c.	 Finance Expenses: Square merchant fees and bank fees.
			   FY22 $1,610	 FY21 $2,320
		  d.	 General Administration: includes General Administration, Audit Fees, Trophies
			   FY22 $15,819	 FY21 $22,364
		  e.	 Insurance: including building, contents, members and public liability insurances
			   FY22 $13,180	 FY21 $8,017
		  f.	 Life Saving: includes lifesaving, IRB and patrol 
			   FY22 $12,588	 FY21 $13,254
		  g.	 Premises and Facilities: Cleaning, maintenance, utilities, small items
			   FY22 $30,504	 FY21 $26,094	

	 5.	 Net Profit: FY22 $65,091     	    FY 21 $122,404

	 6.	 Non-Current Assets: we continue to turn over our equipment with several mals and rescue 
		  boards purchased this season and skis on order. We have also paid for a new IRB to be 
		  delivered in May/June.

Well, I survived a year as interim treasurer (as did the Club!) but it is time for me to sign off. Thanks to BOM 
and Cass Stoodley for your support during the year. Thank you to all members for supporting the running of 
the Club, raising funds, saving lives and having fun.

I am pleased to report South Port Surf Life Saving Club Inc. is solvent.

Ian Hodgen
Treasurer (aka Interim)
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Captain’s Report
Lyndon Mills

We have seen a successful year on the beach once again achieving our major goal and mission each season 
of keeping South Port safe and fatality free. Over 4000 volunteer hours contributed to lifesaving beach 
patrols. A single hour given to community service to ensure our beach remains fatality free is the core 
existence of our Club and future. An amazing statistic in itself and one that our members and in particular 
our patrolling members should be proud of. To each and every one of our volunteer members I thank you 
for your selfless commitment to our beach operations and lifesaving services. When you reflect on the past 
season, there are so many members worthy of recognition. Firstly, thank you to our Patrol Captains for your 
commitment this season in leading and mentoring your patrol groups. The importance of our Patrol Captains 
in managing the beach and the position within the Club that you hold is greatly respected and appreciated. 
Our Nippers are our future lifesavers and competitors and it is important that we harness the potential that 
lies in this area of the Club. This season saw the delivery of another hugely successful Nipper beach 
program.

The Club was fortunate enough to receive a number of grants in season 2021/22 to assist with delivering 
new rescue equipment via the Beach Safety and Equipment Fund, along with Council Grants.

Thanks to all those who also contributed to a successful lifesaving season, from the Committees of both 
Lifesaving and Supporters, through to all the Trainers, Gear Officers, Patrol Captains and Patrol Members. 
Also, a special thanks to those on the building committee, who have all worked tirelessly on the Club 
redevelopment of our toilets and on-going redevelopment of the Gym.

Thank you and congratulations to our competitive members for a successful season and for your 
commitment to attending patrols, training and succeeding in your individual pathways. The Club is fully 
behind your continued growth and success.

The Club is extremely fortunate to have a core group sitting on the management committee. The 
committee has a great blend of passion for the Club, dedication to their role and the skillsets to perform 
their job, ensuring what happens on the beach is delivered in an efficient and effective manner. These 
members are certainly the unsung heroes of the Club and give many hours on the beach and behind the 
scenes at Board meetings, sacrificing their own personal time and commitments for the greater good of our 
Club. To our board, thank you for your continued dedication, support to the Club and your roles.

Our annual report a is a time capsule of how exciting our Club is and highlights our many achievements in 
areas such as Lifesaving, Surf Sports, Nippers and the ever-present Club culture South Port Surf Life Saving 
Club continues to develop and cherish. 

Let’s not lose sight to why we are here, patrolling is our core business.

Finally thank you to every member who volunteered their time in any 
capacity throughout the season.

Lyndon Mills
Club Captain 
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Patrol Statistics

SOUTH PORT SLSC Awards 2021-2022 2020-2021 2019-2020 2018-2019

TOTAL AWARDS OBTAINED 729 599 429 492

10 Year Coaching Service Certificate 0 0 0 0

10 Year National Patrol Service Award 0 0 0 3

20 Year Assessing Service Certificate 0 0 0 1

25 Year Assessing Service Certificate 0 0 0 1

5 Year National Patrol Service Award 0 0 0 9

50 Year Long Service Award 2 0 0 0

60 Year Long Service Award 3 0 0 0

Address adult language literacy and 
numeracy skills

0 0 1 0

Advanced Resuscitation Techniques 
[AID] 5 4 1 3

Age Manager (Online Theory) 7 9 4 0

Age Manager Course 6 1 0 0

Age Manager Mentor 2 0 0 0

Apply surf awareness and self-rescue 
skills

30 16 7 17

ART Online Theory Assessment 1 0 0 0

Award for Non Award Member (120 
days)

3 0 0 0

Bronze Medallion 15 4 6 14

Certificate II in Public Safety (Aquatic 
Rescue)

21 8 7 17

Patrol Statistics & Awards

Type 2021-2022 2020-2021 2019-2020 2018-2019

Major Rescue 8 17 18 16

Preventative Actions 877 454 1311 796

First Aid 74 48 131 107

Patrols 63 57 64 64

Hours 4062.25 4339.57 3623.88 3430.09

People 131 138 128 132

Average Patrol Hours 31.01 33.45 27.66 25.98
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SOUTH PORT SLSC Awards 2021-2022 2020-2021 2019-2020 2018-2019

Child and Youth Risk Management 
Strategies

1 1 0 0

Child Safe Awareness 16 1 0 0

Communicate in the workplace 21 8 7 17

Communicate to team effectiveness 0 0 0 3

Crew small powercraft in a rescue 
operation

6 1 0 0

Design and develop assessment tools 0 1 0 0

Endorsed Delegate - ARTC [AID] 0 1 0 0

Endorsed Delegate - Bronze Medallion 1 0 3 0

Endorsed Delegate - IRB Crew 0 3 0 0

Endorsed Delegate - SRC 1 0 0 0

First Aid [AID] 7 1 4 1

Follow defined occupational health and 
safety policies and procedures 21 8 7 17

Inclusive Beaches Online 1 4 4 0

Introduction to Search and Rescue 0 0 0 0

IRB Crew Certificate 4 1 0 0

JRB Driver Certificate 0 1 0 0

Junior Activities Age Manager - Online 
Theory

0 0 0 2

Junior Activities Age Manager Course 0 0 0 0

Junior Activities Competition Skills 
Evaluation Under 10

18 12 17 3

Junior Activities Competition Skills 
Evaluation Under 11

15 16 13 10

Junior Activities Competition Skills 
Evaluation Under 12

19 6 14 7

Junior Activities Competition Skills 
Evaluation Under 13

7 10 7 10

Junior Activities Competition Skills 
Evaluation Under 14

10 1 8 0

Junior Activities Competition Skills 
Evaluation Under 9

11 14 17 3

Patrol Statistics & Awards
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Patrol Statistics & Awards

SOUTH PORT SLSC Awards 2021-2022 2020-2021 2019-2020 2018-2019

Junior Activities Preliminary Evaluation 
Under 10

20 12 18 8

Junior Activities Preliminary Evaluation 
Under 11

16 17 13 11

Junior Activities Preliminary Evaluation 
Under 12

19 6 14 7

Junior Activities Preliminary Evaluation 
Under 13

7 11 6 11

Junior Activities Preliminary Evaluation 
Under 14

10 6 8 0

Junior Activities Preliminary Evaluation 
Under 7 - Restricted

0 0 1 0

Junior Activities Preliminary Evaluation 
Under 8

14 12 23 13

Junior Activities Preliminary Evaluation 
Under 9

13 18 18 5

LMS Access 2 0 0 0

Maintain safety at an incident scene 2 0 0 1

Make a presentation 1 0 0 0

Operate and maintain a small powercraft 
and motor for rescue operations

0 1 0 0

Operate communications systems and 
equipment

30 16 7 17

Participate in an aquatic rescue 
operation 29 16 7 17

Participate in assessment validation 0 0 0 0

PBTR - Child Protection - Harassment 
and Discrimination 0 0 0 0

Plan assessment activities and processes 0 0 0 0

Prepare maintain and test response 
equipment

0 1 0 0

Probationary TAF 1 0 0 0

Provide advanced resuscitation 0 4 1 0

Provide advanced resuscitation and 
oxygen therapy

5 0 0 0

Provide basic emergency life support 28 9 13 17

Provide basic life support 0 0 0 1
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SOUTH PORT SLSC Awards 2021-2022 2020-2021 2019-2020 2018-2019

Provide cardiopulmonary resuscitation 
[CPR]

36 15 28 29

Provide emergency care 0 1 0 0

Provide first aid 7 2 5 0

Provide work skill instruction 1 0 0 0

PSAR35 Spinal Update 3 2 0 0

Radio Operator Certificate 0 0 0 0

Responding to Abuse and Neglect - 
Education and Care 1 0 0 1

Resuscitation [AID] 0 2 6 8

Resuscitation Online Theory Assessment 4 0 0 0

Safeguarding Children and Young People 
Awareness

0 1 2 29

Safer Surf Clubs Online Part 1 0 0 1 4

Safer Surf Clubs Online Part 2 0 0 0 3

Safer Surf Clubs Online Part 3 0 0 0 2

Safer Surf Clubs Online Part 4 0 0 0 2

Search as a member of an aquatic search 
team

2 1 0 1

Silver Medallion Aquatic Rescue 2 1 0 1

Silver Medallion Beach Management 1 0 0 3

SRC - BM Transition (Online Theory 
Assessment)

2 0 0 0

SRR App Access 2 0 0 0

SS - ASADA level 1 Anti doping 0 0 1 0

SS - ASC Community Coaching General 
Principles 0 0 2 0

SS - ASC Officiating General Principles 0 0 0 1

SS - Core Official 1 2 0 1

SS - Core Official (Online Theory 
Modules)

5 7 3 1

SS - Development Coach Board 0 0 0 2

SS - Development Coach IRB (Online 
Modules)

0 0 1 0

Patrol Statistics & Awards
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SOUTH PORT SLSC Awards 2021-2022 2020-2021 2019-2020 2018-2019

SS - Development Coach (Online Theory 
Modules)

3 1 1 0

SS - Development Coach Ski 1 0 0 1

SS - Development Coach Surf Boat 
(Online Modules) 0 0 1 0

SS - Development Coach Swim 0 0 0 1

SS - Development Coach Swim (Online 
Modules) 0 0 0 1

SS - Foundation Coach (Online Theory 
Modules)

1 1 1 0

SS - S3 Boat Sweep Accreditation 0 0 1 1

SS - Scrutineer (Online Modules) 0 0 1 0

SS - Sport Australia Community 
Coaching - Essential Skills Course

3 0 0 0

SS - Sport Australia Community 
Officiating General Principles

10 6 0 0

SS - Technical Official 1 3 0 0

SS - Technical Official (Online Theory 
Modules)

4 2 0 0

SSV Operator Induction 0 1 0 0

Surf Aware One 21 12 26 11

Surf Aware Two 9 16 19 15

Surf Play One 22 0 0 17

Surf Play Two 17 0 1 18

Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed) 9 8 11 21

Surf Risk Rating (Online Modules) 2 0 0 0

Surf Safe One 20 13 16 7

Surf Safe Two 17 16 12 10

Surf Smart One 17 5 12 7

Surf Smart Two 6 10 7 9

TAF Pre-season Face-to-Face 1 0 0 0

TAF Pre-season Online 2021 1 0 0 0

Training Officer Advanced Resuscitation 
Techniques

1 0 0 0

Patrol Statistics & Awards
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SOUTH PORT SLSC Awards 2021-2022 2020-2021 2019-2020 2018-2019

UAV Operator (non RePL) 0 0 1 0

Undertake beach safety management 
activities

1 0 0 3

VHF Marine Licence 1 0 0 0

Work autonomously 0 0 0 3

Work effectively in a public safety 
organisation

21 8 7 17

Work in a team 22 8 7 17

Patrol Statistics & Awards
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SOUTH PORT SLSC CLUB AWARDS 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20

Athlete of the Year - Youth (Female) Daisy Proctor Zalika Cederblad Zalika Cederblad

Athlete of the Year - Youth (Male) Mali Gilligan Damon James Axel Cunningham

Athlete of the Year - Open (Female) Zalika Cederblad Sadie Proctor
Piper 
Cunningham

Athlete of the Year - Open (Male) Macklin Harvey Alex Botha Xabian Cederblad

Athlete of the Year - Masters 
(Female)

Kathryn Vogt Kathryn Vogt Not awarded

Athlete of the Year - Masters (Male) Alex Botha Alex Botha Alex Botha

Annual Long Swim - Fastest (Overall) Xabian Cederblad Xabian Cederblad Xabian Cederblad

Annual Long Swim - Fastest Time 
(Female)

Zalika Cederblad Kenya Thomas
Piper 
Cunningham

Annual Long Swim - Fastest Time 
(Male)

Xabian Cederblad Xabian Cederblad Xabian Cederblad

Annual Long Swim - Half (Female) Harper Molenaar Tameka Davidson Summer Thomas

Annual Long Swim - Half (Male) Finn Gilligan Tom Ainsworth Bailey James

Annual Long Swim - Oldest 
Competitor

Robert Scammell Robert Scammell Robert Scammell

Annual Long Swim - Youngest 
Competitor

Grace Syvertsen Poppy Burrows Kade Stoodley

Beach Champion Sadie Proctor Zalika Cederblad Sadie Proctor

Best First Year Patrol Member Zack Rodriguez Isabel Berry Aaron Oliver

Board Paddler Champion Sadie Proctor Alex Botha Zalika Cederblad

Captains Trophy

Bar Flys
Aaron Oliver
Mark Dobson
Paul Howse
Kevin Heher
Steve Reddaway
Richard Olesinski OAM
Lyndon Mills

Aaron Oliver Shaun James

Senior Awards of Excellence
Club Awards
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Senior Awards of Excellence
Club Awards

SOUTH PORT SLSC CLUB AWARDS 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20

Champion Patrol

Patrol 1 - Ian Boys 
(Captain), Tom 
McKenzie (VC), Penny 
McKenzie, Lyndon 
Mills, Tony 
McKenzie, Gina Mills,  
Jake McKenzie, Mark 
Dobson, Aaron 
Oliver, Stacey 
Rylander, Trevor Kline, 
Manu Ortiz, Sean 
Lohse, Leo Oliver, 
Damon James and 
Swai Abbracciavento. 

Patrol 1 - Ian Boys 
(Captain), Penny 
McKenzie (Vice 
Captain), Lyndon 
Mills, Tony 
McKenzie, Gina 
Mills,  Jake 
McKenzie, Tom 
McKenzie, Mark 
Dobson, Aaron 
Oliver, Stacey 
Rylander, Trevor 
Kline, Talon 
Copley, Leo 
Oliver and Damon 
James. 

Patrol 7 - 
Stephanie Horne 
(Capt), 	Sara 
Lane (VC), Steve 
Clohesy, Shane 
Organ, Julia 
Llewellyn, Rachel 
Nitschke, Kate 
Liersch, 
Alexander 
Greaves, Melissa 
Thomas, Joseph 
Thomas, 
Katherine Gore, 
Bobbie-Jean 
Stevens, 
Catherine 
Clohesy. 

Club Champion - Under 14 (Female) Bella McAvaney Daisy Proctor Zalika Cederblad

Club Champion - Under 14 (Male) Kade Stoodley Leo Oliver Damon James

Club Champion - Under 15 (Female) Daisy Proctor Zalika Cederblad Sadie Proctor

Club Champion - Under 15 (Male) Leo Oliver Damon James Axel Cunningham

Club Champion - Under 17 (Female) Sadie Proctor Sadie Proctor Not contended

Club Champion - Under 17 (Male) Damon James Axel Cunningham Not contended

Club Champion - Under 19 (Female) Not contended Not Contended
Piper 
Cunningham

Club Champion - Under 19 (Male) Not contended Alex Gettie Xabian Cederblad

Club Champion - Open (Female) Sadie Proctor Piper Cunningham
Piper 
Cunningham

Club Champion - Open (Male) Alex Botha Alex Botha Xabian Cederblad

Club Champion - Masters (Female) Kathryn Vogt Kathryn Vogt Kathryn Vogt

Club Champion - Masters (Male) Alex Botha Alex Botha Alex Botha

Coach/Captain/Coordinator of the 
Year

Alex Botha Alex Botha Alex Botha

Most Dedicated Competitor Zalika Cederblad Damon James Zalika Cederblad

Most Dedicated Patrol Member Aaron Oliver Aaron Oliver Stacey Rylander
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Senior Awards of Excellence
Club Awards

SOUTH PORT SLSC CLUB AWARDS 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20

Most Dedicated Team Member Josh Zeitz - -

Most Improved Beach Athlete Mali Gilligan - -

Most Improved Board Paddler Bella McAvaney - -

Most Improved Boat Crew Not awarded.

Master 200 Men’s 
Boat Crew 
Expendables - 
Michael Goldfinch, 
Stephen Kille, 
Malcolm Rudd, 
Damian Taylor, 
Bradley Vogt 
(sweep).

U19 Female Boat 
Crew Stormies - 
Jade Benn, 
Catherine Taylor, 
Ruby Thomas, 
Megan Sinclair, 
Jason McGaffin 
(sweep).

Most Improved Ski Paddler Tillie Zeitz - -

Most Improved Surf Swimmer Kade Stoodley - -

Most Outstanding Member Kylie Cederblad Danni Hansen Nicole Berry

Most Outstanding Performance by a 
Boat Crew

South Port Seedy Seals 
Masters 160 Womens 
Boat Crew -  Megan 
Syvertsen, Rachel 
Trowbridge,Lisa Biggs, 
Mary Carr, Jason 
McGaffin (Sweep)

South Port Swell 
Masters 140 
Womens Boat 
Crew -  Kate 
Burnett, Catherine 
Clohesy, Megan 
Syvertsen, Rachel 
Trowbridge, 
Bradley Vogt  
(Sweep)

U19 Female Boat 
Crew Stormies - 
Jade Benn, 
Catherine Taylor, 
Ruby Thomas, 
Megan Sinclair, 
Jason McGaffin 
(sweep).

Most Outstanding Team
U17 2x1km Beach Run 
Zalika Cederblad and 
Sadie Proctor.

South Port Swell 
Open and 
Masters 140 
Womens Boat 
Crew - Kate 
Burnett, Catherine 
Clohesy, Megan 
Syvertsen, Rachel 
Trowbridge, 
Bradley Vogt 
(Sweep)

U19 Female Boat 
Crew Stormies - 
Jade Benn, 
Catherine Taylor, 
Ruby Thomas, 
Megan Sinclair, 
Jason McGaffin 
(sweep).

Official of the Year Paul Zeitz Donna Logan Shaun James
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SOUTH PORT SLSC CLUB AWARDS 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20

Rescue of the Year

Patrol 1 - Ian Boys 
(Captain), Tom 
McKenzie (VC), Penny 
McKenzie, Lyndon 
Mills, Tony McKenzie, 
Gina Mills,  Jake 
McKenzie, Mark 
Dobson, Aaron 
Oliver, Stacey 
Rylander, Trevor Kline, 
Manu Ortiz, Sean 
Lohse, Leo Oliver, 
Damon James and 
Swai Abbracciavento. 

Leo Oliver, Damon 
James and Mali 
Gilligan.

Patrol 5 - Sunday 
02/02/2020
Keith Mills (PC),
Laura Odell (VC),
Gordon Benn, 
Ben Kille, Tanya 
Benn, Reece 
Benn, Shane 
Organ, Steve 
Kille, Isobel Kille.

Services to Lifesaving Aaron Oliver Lyndon Mills Aaron Oliver

Ski Paddler Champion Zalika Cederblad Alex Botha Xabian Cederblad

Swim Champion Alex Botha Kenya Thomas Kenya Thomas

Weekly Swim Champion - Junior (U9-
U13) – Female

Zoe Williams Bella McAvaney Daisy Proctor

Weekly Swim Champion - Junior (U9-
U13) – Male

Bailey James Kade Stoodley Leo Oliver

Weekly Swim Champion - Under 14
(Female)

Bella McAvaney Summer Thomas Tillie Zeitz

Weekly Swim Champion - Under 14 
(Male)

Kade Stoodley Leo Oliver Damon James

Weekly Swim Champion - Under 15 
(Female)

Swai Abbracciavento Zalika Cederblad Sadie Proctor

Weekly Swim Champion - Under 15 
(Male)

Leo Oliver Damon James Axel Cunningham

Weekly Swim Champion - Under 17 
(Female)

Not contested Kenya Thomas Not contended

Weekly Swim Champion - Under 17 
(Male)

Damon James Not contended Not contended

Weekly Swim Champion - Under 19 
(Female)

Not contested Not contended
Piper 
Cunningham

Senior Awards of Excellence
Club Awards
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SOUTH PORT SLSC CLUB AWARDS 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20

Weekly Swim Champion - Under 19 
(Male)

Not contested Alexander Gettie Xabian Cederblad

Weekly Swim Champion - Open 
(Female)

Not contested Not contended
Piper 
Cunningham

Weekly Swim Champion - Open (Male) Not contested Not contended Xabian Cederblad

Weekly Swim Champion - Over 30 
Masters

Alex Botha &
Gabrielle Peterson

Alex Botha &
Gabrielle Peterson

Alex Botha

Weekly Swim Champion - Over 40 
Masters

Richard Thomas Aaron Oliver Greg Higgs

Weekly Swim Champion - Over 50 
Masters

Greg Higgs & Sue 
Williams

Leigh Chirgwin Leigh Chirgwin

Weekly Swim Champion - Over 60
Masters

Robert Scammell Robert Scammell Robert Scammell

Weekly Swim Champion - Masters 
(Female)

Gabrielle Petersen & 
Sue Williams

Gabrielle Peterson Not Contended

Weekly Swim Champion - Masters 
(Male)

Robert Scammell Alex Botha Alex Botha

Weekly Swim Champion - Overall 
(Female)

Swai Abbracciavento Kenya Thomas Sadie Proctor

Weekly Swim Champion - Overall 
(Male)

Damon James Alex Botha Alex Botha

Youth Development – Competition 
(Female)

Bella McAvaney Zalika Cederblad Zalika Cederblad

Youth Development – Competition 
(Male)

Not awarded Damon James Xabian Cederblad

Youth Development – General 
(Female)

Bella McAvaney Summer Thomas Not awarded

Youth Development – General (Male) Kade Stoodley Alexander Gettie Ryan Christie

Senior Awards of Excellence
Club Awards
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SOUTH PORT SLSC CLUB AWARDS 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20

50+ Club Patrol Hours 

Aaron Oliver 161.5hrs
Alex Botha 146.5hrs
Lyndon Mills 136.5hrs
Leo Oliver 73hrs
Barry Dellow 68.5hrs
Liam McAvaney 51hrs
Gabrielle Peterson 51hrs

Aaron Oliver 166.5
Alex Botha 136.5
Lyndon Mills 127.5 
Noelene Lee 81
Gabrielle Peterson 
79
Paul Howse 72.25
Gordon Benn 72
John Charles 70
Stephen Proctor 
64.25
Scott Lines 62.5
Sally-Ann Botha	58.5
Steven Clohesy	58
Ryan Christie 57.5
Ian Boys 53.5
Alexander Gettie 
52.5
Brett Fisher 52.25
Leo Oliver 51.5
Leigh Chirgwin 51
Keith Mills 51
Tony McKenzie 50.5

Aaron Oliver 116.17 
Lyndon Mills 111.5
Alex Botha 108
Paul Howse 78
Shane Organ 75.58
Stacey Rylander 57
Liam McAvaney 55
Amy Feldman 54.28
Stephen Proctor 50

Senior Awards of Excellence
Club Awards



62nd Annual Report
32

What a busy season 2021/22 was.......

SLSSA Senior State Championship – overall point score 5th with 298 points, the top mid coast club with a 
53% improvement from season 2020/21!

SLSSA Junior State Championship – overall point score 6th with 166 points, the top mid coast club with a 
10% improvement for season 2022/21.

SLSSA Masters State Championship – overall point score 5th with 350 points, the top mid coast club.

Amazing commitment from our Coaches Alex Botha (Board and Iron), Sean Lohse (Ski), Jason, Keith and 
Ben (Boat/Sweep). It goes without saying that our coaches are amazing humans who not only commit 
their time at a coaching session but the behind-the-scenes work; planning sessions, supporting athletes 
and parents before/after training, looking after club equipment and organising repairs, team selections, 
administration work that I annoyingly asking of them all the time, supporting athletes at Carnivals, 8@8 
sessions and Aussies. Their families are amazing for supporting and allowing them to do what they love. 
All our athletes and the Club should be extremely grateful to these wonderful individuals.

Supporting our Coaches, we had Alex Gettie running Tuesday night Swimming at Noarlunga Aquatic and 
Leisure Centre. Alex’s confidence has continued to grow since joining South Port SLSC and volunteering 
his time in an such an impactful way. I hear he was a huge hit on a Tuesday night. 

We had four Senior Athletes selected in the SLSSA Surf League; Alex Botha Leader in the Air Diffusion 
Team; Zalika Cederblad in the Prep Hydration Team and Sadie Proctor in the Helistar Team. Tillie Zeitz had 
the opportunity to fill in for the Prep Hydration Team and Reserve Women Boat Crew filled in for Helistar.

Twelve athletes were selected in the SLSSA 2021/22 Youth High Performance Group. This group were 
invited to skills development sessions, involved in Zoom guest speaker session with Georgia Miller and 
Matt Bevilaqua and camp.
U13 – Nicole Hendry, Taj Lee
U15 – Swai Abbracciavento, Denia Brenchley-Sheldon, Mali Gilligan, Leo Oliver, Daisy Proctor, Summer 
Thomas
U16 – Angus Logan, Zalika Cederblad
U17 – Kenya Thomas, Sadie Proctor

We welcomed Macklin Harvey and Jayden Reeves to the Club in the Senior Competition Team. We 
also had Kai and Cale Dellow come back to their first competitions since Nippers. Our Senior Team 
continues to grow with our U14’s transitioning. It was a pleasure watching this groups confidence grow 
throughout the season. Isabella McAvaney, Ruby Booij, Chloe Harsing, Kaysha Dellow, Tamika Davidson, 
Kade Stoodley, Diesel Stevens, Jake Gore. 

Our Surf Sports group has been working on the culture of the Club’s youth with the aim of retaining them 
into Seniors and the wider Club community. We have been lucky to have Aaron Oliver and Mel Thomas 
supporting this group. Aaron has enthusiastically organised pizza nights, camps and excursions into the 
city. Mel Thomas ran the Saturday Squids sessions where she successfully supported our Squids, 

Surf Sports Manager 
Kylie Cederblad
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especially making sure our U14’s transitioning to Seniors had something to do and remain engaged with 
the Club.

Penny McKenzie and Steve Proctor started working with our Youth. 

Massive thanks to Aaron Oliver, Carla and Paul Zeitz, Donna Logan, Joe Thomas and Kylie Cederblad for 
chaperoning 23 athletes for a two-night camp, competing at the Robe Senior Carnival and a surf session 
on the second day. It was a fantastic weekend with huge surf and team bonding. Also, thanks to Harvey, 
Fisher, Dellow and Stoodley families who supported the weekend. 

Josh Zeitz supported Tillie and Zalika in their preparation for Champion Lifesaver State Championships. 
Josh did an amazing job with all three securing points for the Club. Hopefully we can grow the numbers 
competing in this group in the coming seasons.

We had growing numbers compete in the Kozii Enduro, Board Riding Championships and Pool Rescue 
Carnivals and State Championships. 

Aussies
Youth – Leo Oliver and Kade Stoodley
Masters – Alex Botha and South Port Seedy Seals – Rachel Martin, Lisa Biggs, Mary Carr, Megan 
Syvertsen and Jason McGaffin
U23 Boat Crew – South Port Shockwaves – Megan Sinclair, Amber Smith, Jade Benn, Charlotte 
Woodroffe, Jason McGaffin
Open – Sadie Proctor, Zalika Cederblad, Tillie Zeitz, Macklin Harvey, Alex Botha and we welcomed Amy 
Buck and Lilija Zampatti from Semaphore SLSC.

We had a successful Aussies 2022 campaign. It was great to have new athletes make the trip to 
Queensland. Leo and Kade learning a lot from their experience and should be proud of their races. Our 
Masters Athletes coming away with 3 medals, the U23 Boat Crew just missing out on progressing past 
the quarter finals, Sadie and Zalika winning the first Australian Beach Medal for our Club and the difficult 
conditions our Open competitors had to deal with.

Alex Botha 
Silver – 35-39yr Board Race
Bronze – 35-39yr Ironperson
4th – 35-39yr Ski Race
5th – 35-39yr Surf Race

South Port Seedy Seals
Bronze – Masters 160yrs Surf Boat

Sadie Proctor and Zalika Cederblad
Silver U17 2x1km Relay

Finalists U19 Double Ski – Sadie Proctor and Zalika Cederblad

Surf Sports Manager... Cont
Kylie Cederblad
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Surf Sports Manager... cont 
Kylie Cederblad

Finalist U17 Ski Relay – Tillie Zeitz, Sadie Proctor and Zalika Cederblad
Finalist U17 Taplin Relay – Amy Buck, Sadie Proctor and Zalika Cederblad

Our Officials who without we could not have achieved any of these results we are most grateful for. As 
the Club has grown so too does our Officials requirements. We were lucky enough to have a lot more 
members become accredited officials this season to share the workload. Huge appreciation to Paul Zeitz 
who took on the role of Officials Coordinator.

As always our amazing photographers Chloe James, Tracy McAvaney, Deb Sinclair, Danni Hansen, Brad 
Vogt, Vanda-lee Giebel and Kylie Cederblad who stand on the beach for hours on end capturing amazing 
photos.

Looking forward to the 2022/23 season to continue our work on developing the team’s culture, increasing 
participation across all areas of surf sports, continuing and improving our strong competition results and 
most importantly being part of the South Port SLSC community. 

Kylie Cederblad
Surf Sports Manager
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Surf & Beach
Photos
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It is a pleasure to write this report, following another successful year, with multiple crews at Masters and 
Senior States, and two crews competing at Aussies, with the Seedy Seals 160 Female crew picking up a 
Bronze medal. Congratulations to all of you.

As always, we have to say thank you to many people - 
Boat towers – John ‘Schmidt’ Smith, John ‘Devo’ Devitt and Craig ‘Clagus’ Smith
The sweeps – Jason McGaffin, Ben West and Keith Mills
Official - Siggi Giebel
Photography - Deb Sinclair

The Sponsors – 
KFC Seaford Rise, who have generously committed once again, to a 2 year deal, worth $20k to our Club.
CMI Toyota have also come on board this season.
The Boaties Supporters club – A record year, with over $9000 raised. Thank you to everyone who has 
donated, you know who you are!
It is poignant, that in the year when we scattered Don ‘Bristles’ Alexander’s ashes in the water at South 
Port, the Boaties Supporters Club came up trumps – for those who aren’t aware, it was Bristles who 
initiated the Club. Vale.
It is of course important that we all strive to maintain these income streams – after all, we all benefit with 
good quality, well maintained equipment and travel support.
I have to thank Jason, who still puts in many hours and much energy behind the scenes, even though he is 
no longer Boat Captain.
And a final thank you from me to the ‘elder statesmen’ of rowers still around the Club – people who aren’t 
necessarily involved on a day to day basis, but whose expert knowledge and input is freely offered, and 
very much appreciated.

The results;
Masters States
140F – Spare Parts - Kathryn Vogt, Sara Lane, Megan Syvertsen, Steph Horne, Jason McGaffin – Gold Medal.
160F – Seedy Seals - Mary Carr, Lisa Biggs, Rachel Trowbridge, Catherine Clohesy, Jason McGaffin – Gold 
Medal.
200M – The Expendables - Malcolm Rudd, Steve Kille, Michael Goldfinch, Damian Taylor, Keith Mills – 
Bronze Medal.
260NGS – The Phantoms - Dick Olesinski OAM, Norm Churchman, Chris Foord, Lyndon Mills, Keith Mills – 
Gold Medal.

Senior States Short Course
Shockwaves – Amber Smith, Jade Benn, Charlotte Woodroffe, Megan Sinclair, Jason McGaffin – Silver 
Snappers – Tristan Foord, Tom Smith, Sam Edwards, Keith Mills, Jason McGaffin – Silver

Senior States
Shockwaves- U23 F – Amber Smith, Megan Sinclair, Charlotte Woodroffe, Jade Benn, Jason McGaffin - 
Silver Medal.
Spare Parts – Open Female- Steph Horne, Catherine Clohesy, Sara Lane, Kathryn Vogt, Ben West - Bronze 
Medal.

Surf Boat Report
Keith Mills
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Seedy Seals – Res Female -  Kate Liersch, Lisa Biggs, Rachel Trowbridge, Emily Goldy - Jason McGaffin - 
Silver Medal.
Expendables – Res Male – Malcolm Rudd, Steve Kille, Michael Goldfinch, Damian Taylor, Jason McGaffin 
– semi Final.
Snappers – Res M – Tristan Foord, Tom Smith, Sam Edwards, Keith Mills, Jason McGaffin – Silver Medal.

ASRL Open
Shockwaves – Megan Sinclair, Amber Smith, Charlotte Woodroffe, Jade Benn, Jason McGaffin – Quarter 
Final.

Aussies
Shockwaves U23F - Megan Sinclair, Amber Smith, Charlotte Woodroffe, Jade Benn, Jason McGaffin - 
Quarter Final.
Seedy Seals 160F – Mary Carr, Lisa Biggs, Rachel Trowbridge, Catherine Clohesy, Jason McGaffin - Bronze 
Medal.

Keith Mills
Boat Captain

Surf Boat Report.. cont
Keith Mills
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Surf Boat Photos
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Marketing & Sponsorship 
Officer‘s Report
Sara Lane

For the 2021/2022 season, the Club introduced and welcomed, a Marketing and Sponsorship Officer to 
the Board of Management. As it was the first year of the position, time was spent focusing on building 
and developing the foundation documents, systems, processes and tools for the role in the future. Steps 
have been taking to ensure that, whoever fills the role in the future, can build on the legacy and work, of 
those before them by adding additional value to the Club.

A special thanks to the new and ongoing partners and sponsors of the Club this year, many of whom are 
members. Without your ongoing support, the Club wouldn’t be as successful both on and off the water. 
Also, special thanks to those members who actively engaged, connected and supported our sponsors this 
season. Please see all sponsors at the end of the Annual Report for this season.

Finally, just as important as our sponsors, the Club brand is strengthened by our Club culture and pride 
that our members have in the Club. Everytime you hit the beach in competition, share a Club post or 
photo on social media, wear your Club merchandise in the community or share your experience with 
someone who is not connected to the Club, you are acting as Club brand ambassadors. This positive 
interaction and engagement adds value to those connected to this great Club. It is these 1%ers which 
makes marketing the Club more successful. 

Sara Lane 
Marketing and Sponsorship Officer
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March Past Report
Vonnie Olesinski and Anita Emswiler

Open March Past Team

Well, wasn’t there a big change to the March Past season this year?

We saw the retirement of coach and mentor extraordinaire – Bob Mayo AM. After countless years at the 
helm, (more than 30) another chapter in history came to an end at South Port. Thank you Bob for 
paving the way for all teams around Australia, for being a leader, a trailblazer, and a passionate advocate 
for March Past.

But as they say in the classics, when one door closes, another door opens - and this was the case with 
Andy Higgs stepping into the coaching role. Andy hadn’t coached since 2007 where he took the ladies 
team to a bronze Aussie medal at Scarborough WA, but stepped back into the role effortlessly with calm 
and enthusiasm. Along with Andy at the helm, we would also like to say a big thank you to John “Hally” 
Hall and Frank Drake for helping out at training’s and always encouraging us.

We also needed to find new members to fill vacant positions. One of those positions was held by Jenny 
Whitmee, who like Bob, had marched for around 30 years and was the only female at times in the 
magnificent South Port March Past teams of yesteryear. We were lucky to find four ladies who had all 
marched (some as long ago as Under 21’s) and some a little more recent than that, that had the skill, 
muscle memory and a great sense of fun. Just what the team needed. Thank you to Sharryn Campbell (af-
ter a year off), Sally Botha, Maggie Botha and Gabby Peterson... and as previous seasons we had Donna 
Logan as our reserve, who marched brilliantly on the day of States at very short notice.

We didn’t train as long this season, in fact, with everyone’s busy schedules I think we only managed 3 
training sessions with a full team. At times we may have only had 6 or 7 on the beach but we never gave 
up. Improvisation was key to this season.

March Past States was on a Saturday this year and the event was amalgamated with the Junior States 
which made for lots of teams on the Beach and a true spectacle of colours and flags.

I am happy to say that we won, we took the Gold! It just goes to prove that with determination, fantastic 
team work (no matter how fractured at times), belief in your ability and the positions you have marched in 
for season after season, that perseverance pays off.

Thank you to all that have supported us, believed in us, and came to watch us march at States, we hope 
we did you proud.

Here’s to our next season, one that hopefully will be filled with the same enthusiasm, pride, team work 
and above all fun.

Anita Emswiler
Team Captain
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U23 March Past Team

The Club was lucky to have twenty four competitors for 2 Teams in the Under 23 Division this Season.
 
The Green Team led by Pennant Bearer Josh Zeitz with Tillie Zeitz in Belt.
The Blue Team led by Pennant Bearer Alexander Gettie with Daisy Proctor in Belt.
They all competed as a Team with amazing results coming in with a Gold and Silver.  

Thanks to Donna Logan, Assistant Coach, and Kylie Cederblad for the Administration of the Teams.

A Special Thanks to ‘Classic Colour Screen Printers’ for donating the T-Shirts and Screen Printing.

Coach 
Vonnie Olesinski 

March Past Report Cont...
Vonnie Olesinski and Anita Emswiler



62nd Annual Report
43

Facilities Manager’s Report
Mark ‘Dobbo’ Dobson

Our Club had the completion of the renovation of the changerooms and toilets bringing them up to date. 
Together with the Onkaparinga team and work commissioned by Robbie Hodges of the RMK building 
group. The funding was a mix of federal and council funding at a cost of $540,000. Work involved the total 
removal all the existing changerooms and first aid room and entry hallway to the Club. The canteen was 
fitted out with new stainless steel benches and installed with 2 new fridges and freezer.  A brand-new 
first aid room was also built in line with the canteen. We achieved the extra space to build this by a sug-
gestion to bring the whole footprint of the build into the existing Club room, a great suggestion by Aaron 
Oliver.
 
Other completed works
 
-	 A new cool room installed in the bar area at a cost of $23,000 thanks to Marsha Smith and 
	 installed by Mid coast refrigeration - thanks Mango and his crew and Lindsay Bloom for new beer 
	 lines. 
 
-	 The complete exterior of the Club repainted by Onkaparinga council and the paint was donated by 
	 Dulux as part of their Surf Lifesaving sponsorship.
 
-	 Security cameras installed at the boatshed on River Road.
 
Future work this year

-	 Outside security camera upgrade by the Onkaparinga assets team.

I’d like to give thanks to our cleaner Paul Catchpole and The Bar Flys and Sand Flys. Thanks to Marsha, 
Laura and Hendrix, Olly, Dolla, Doha, Spider, Devo, Aaron ‘Gary’ and ‘The Triplets’ (Howsey, Big Kev and 
Reddas).

Thank you all, with your work and commitment our Club is in fine shape.

Facilities Manager 
Mark Dobson.
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New Clubhouse Renovation
PHOTOS
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Environmental (Ecosurf) report
Carly Lynch

I wanted to highlight that this season we saw the installation of an environmentally themed A frame sign 
for the Club to encourage a litter free environment.

We also completed a beach clean with the Nippers and spoke about the effects of marine debris on the 
coast and ocean with ideas of how to reduce our consumption of single use plastics at the Club and be-
yond.

Regards,
Carly Lynch
Environmental Officer
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Member Development 
Officer’s Report 
Aaron Oliver

This season was incredibly hard with all the restrictions and events having to be cancelled due to covid 
out breaks in and around the Club.
   
We started off the season with a Winter camp to Willow Creek. We had 22 SQUIDS come along, including 
a new bunch of U14s. We spent the days hiking, surfing and catching up around a bonfire. It was a great 
opportunity to catch up pre season.

As the season started we were still juggling Covid restrictions, but managed to have a pool shark 
competition followed by pizza which was a great night. The group once again embraced the new u14s to 
feel welcome and by the end of the night no one wanted to go home.

Later on in the season we decided to musk up and catch the train into Adelaide to wonder around the 
Luna festival. We spent most of the night in the food truck line, but eventually got to go through to see 
the Lanterns.

As we moved through the year an opportunity came forward to go to Robe for a senior carnival. With the 
support of the Surf Sports Crew 22 athletes made the adventure to Robe on a 22-seater bus. Followed 
by the club ute with craft in tow. We stayed in cabins at the caravan park with a communal kitchen that 
became the hub. Carnival day spirits were high and the swell was pumping. The group did really well in 
trying conditions with some of the crew having to jump out of there comfit zone. Shout out to all the new  
U14s who took on the conditions.

Hopefully this new season we see less restrictions and can get on with some fun events.

Big thanks to all the parents that helped out in our events and to the Board of Management for 
supporting us in what we do. 
 
Thanks

Aaron Oliver  
Member Development Officer
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SQUIDS Photos
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Senior Lifesaving Education 
Officer’s Report
Noelene Charles

I would like to start by saying, how all members have coped exceptionally well with multiple changes Surf 
Central throw at us. And how everyone has supported Brett Fisher and myself as we understand all the 
changes made to proficiencies and all other courses. 

The Club’s traditional 1st course run at the beginning of the season, was one of the biggest groups seen 
in many years. This saw 9 Junior members gain their SRC award, 8 SRC members successfully completed 
their transition to Bronze Medallion, 4 returning members updated their Bronze Medallion and 9 members 
gaining their Bronze Medallion.

Brett Fisher was the senior instructor in-charge of this massive group, what a mammoth effort, thank 
you! I would like to thank all helpers that supported and helped Brett with this course, teaching from their 
knowledge and being there for water safety.

Six members gained their Inflatable Rescue Boat (IRB) crew award, thank you Lyndon Mills for the 
Instruction and Assessment of this award.

There are members which attended Surf Central or other Clubs to gain their proficiencies or new awards, 
not available at South Port. We thank these clubs for their support for our members.

Brett Fisher finally has been acknowledged by Surf Central for his Certificate 4 in Training and Assessing, 
now allowing Brett to assess SRC awards and Resuscitation inhouse. Congratulations Brett!

A Massive Congratulations to all new award holders.

Proficiencies this season was squashed into a few short days, with limited assessors, I thank all members 
for their patience, we got through everyone!

The next few seasons will bring many changes to awards, the main one is Advanced Resuscitation 
Techniques. To gain this award now will be through Surf Central with the added Applied First Aid 
Certificate. 

I am excited to see what happens next season as I have had some interest from members to become 
instructors in some awards, this is some great news for the future. Watch this space!

There is some new equipment on the way for education, training AED, finger pulse oximeters (for the 
new ART award holders only) and some new mats.

COVID 19 still is an active disease within the community, so we need to be aware of this and accept the 
changes made to protect ourselves when preforming CPR. I am super proud of South Port Members on 
how you all have adjusted to these changes, Well Done!

Thank you for everyone’s support
Noelene Charles
Senior Lifesaving Education Officer
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Well, what a year!

With Covid throwing curve balls at us from every angle this season, we really had to pull together as 
a team and that we did.

As always, a huge shout out to my incredible Junior Panel. Aaron Oliver, Alex Botha, Anna Fisher, Cass 
Stoodley, Chloe James, Olivia Harsing and Tracy McAvaney. You are all important pieces to the SPSLSC 
Nippers puzzle, thank you for keeping me somewhat sane!

This season it felt as though our list of volunteers got longer by the minute, especially for State Titles and 
I cannot thank everyone enough who put their hand up (or had their arms gently twisted) to fill these roles. 
From water cover, officials, work parties and Covid marshals to those who helped load and unload 
equipment, without you our kids could not have competed. 

To the Saturday helpers, the BBQ crew, bar staff, canteen, set up and pack up teams and water cover, thank 
you all. To my ever growing bunch of Age Group Managers, thank you for your time, dedication, passion and 
patience. Again, our kids could not have the fantastic time that they do week in week out without all of you.

Thank you to the parents for supporting your nippers, whether that be on a Saturday afternoon or extra 
trainings multiple times per week. On the extra training, a special thank you to our water cover who ensure 
our kids can train safely and of course to the coaches both on the beach and also in the pool.

To Chloe, Tracy and Vanda-lee, your commitment to photographing our events is amazing. The kids are so 
lucky to have these memories captured to look back on, not only online but also in the fantastic year books 
(Thank you Chloe). 

Alex, thank you for the countless hours you put in to help develop and nurture the kids. Not only do you care 
about the Club, you know the kids. I know I can rely on you to be there and know the right thing to say in 
both defeat and also success. 

Enjoy winter and bring on season 22/23!

Danni Hansen
Junior Development Chairperson

Junior Development 
Chairperson’s report

Danni Hansen
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Junior Photos
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Junior Division
Perpetual Trophies

Michelle Howse Encouragement Niamh Hatwell

Junior Club Captains Nicole Hendry and Finn Gilligan

Club Person of the Year Bailey James

Best First Year Delilah James

Champions of the Year Kade Stoodley and Bella McAvaney

Most Improved Finn Gilligan

Club Champions of the Day Sunny Simpson and Imogen Peterson (U8), 
Harper Greer and McKenzie Morris (U9), 
Keiran Hendry and Harper Molenaar (U10), 
Bejay Thomas and Mackenzie Peterson (U11), 
Bailey James and Grace McAvaney (U12), 
Finn Gilligan and Nicole Hendry (U13).

Club Champs Perfect Score Bejay Thomas

Swimming Award Alexis Rylander

Swimming Award Modified Imogen Peterson

Winter Swimming Award Grace McAvaney

Winter Swimming Award Modified Axel Stoodley

Board Paddlers Pink Fin Award Matteo Rodriguez-Beluche (U9), Harper 
Molenaar (U10), Grace McAvaney (U12), Finn 
Gilligan (U13).

Wades Award McKenzie Morris

Beach Award Grace McAvaney

Resusitation Award Not Awarded

March Past Award Zoe Williams
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Shivering Shags Report
Katherine ‘Kat’ Foster

Life Members: *deceased

1999 Olly 2000 Wal 2002 Schmidt
2004 Chill 2005 Emu 2006 Milky *
2006 Randy 2008 Yeti 2009 Bones *
2009 Chalky 2009 Howsey 2010 Zee
2010 OneLine 2011 China 2011 Dodgey
2012 Stubbs 2016 Pussy 2018 Yorky
2019 Trippa 2019 Boonie

A group of winter swimmers whose sole purpose is to have a laugh and generate funds for ‘the Club’ out 
of season. 

The South Port Shivering Shags AGM for 2021 saw the following up standing Shags democratically elected. 

I don’t think so, elected unopposed and continues to reside over Sunday morning meetings as Head Shag. 

Position Elected Position Elected
Head Shag I Don’t Think So Social Shag Clagus
Scribe Shag Kat Tower Shag Siggi, Schmidt and Yeti
Heavy Shag Chalky and Yorky Hospitality Shag Howsey aided by roster
Bar Shag Shortstack
Sundry Officials
GF Book T-Bone Dibber Dobber Shortstack
Disciplinary Committee Head, Heavy Shag & 

Pussy
Apparel Shag Olly

Patron for 2021: Zee	

Winter 2021. Though the wind was cold, the water was icy, the lockdowns were short, and the cough was 
spicy, the shags emerged to do what they do best… run squealing into the ocean every Sunday morning 
in the name of fundraising. 

This season, word of our heroic and honourable ways had spread far and wide, with two new brave souls 
joining the fray. It takes a special sort of clubbie to join such a group, and as always, we welcomed them 
with open arms (while quietly marvelling that they were not scared away from the first meeting). We saw 
out the season with a trip away to Clare, where the locals were kind enough to provide us with an unheated 
pool to complete our end of season swim. 

Shaggers for 2021 were Lyndon “Boonie” Mills, Larry “Chalky” Edge, Craig “Clagus” Smith, Gary “Emu” 
Eastham, Ray “Hooray” Martin Jnr, Paul “Howsey” Howse, Tim “I Don’t Think So” Edge, Katherine “Kat” 
Foster, Belinda “Moist” Hammond, Richard “Olly” Olesinski, Rob “Online” Morgan, Tanya “Precious” 
Spaan, Matthew “Pubes” Burgess, Deb “Pussy” Philps, John “Schmidt” Smith, Laura “Shortstack” Odell, 
Peter “Softie” Whitehorn, Siegfried “Siggi” Giebel, Tibor “T-Bone” Szolnoki, Steven “Trippa” Clohesy, 
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Shivering Shags Report
Katherine ‘Kat’ Foster

Mark “Weed” Dobson, Janet “Yeti” Puplett and Nick “Yorky” Fox.

Season 2021 was led by our illustrious Head Shag Tim “I Don’t Think So” Edge.  Tim was supported by 
Scribe Shag Katherine “Kat” Foster, Tower Shags John “Schmidt” Smith, “Siggi” Giebel and Janet “Yeti” 
Puplett, Heavy Shags Larry “Chalky” Edge and Nick “Yorky” Fox, and Bar Shag Laura “Shortstack” Odell. 
Thanks to the great fundraising efforts of the brothers and sisters, Shags will be donating a new ski to the 
surf club which will support up and coming competitors. We thank the Board of Management for allowing 
our continued use of the Club rooms to hold our meetings each week. 

Cheers
Katherine “Kat” Foster
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South Port Senior State Championship Results 2022
5th Place Overall - 290 points

Gold Open Female 2 x 1km Beach Run Relay Zalika Cederblad and Sadie Proctor

Gold Open Female Board Rescue Zalika Cederblad and Sadie Proctor

Gold U15 Female 2Km Beach Run Daisy Proctor

Gold U16 Male Single Ski Macklin Harvey

Gold Open NGS March Past Nicole Berry, Maggie Botha, Sally-Ann Botha, 
Sharryn Campbell, Anita Emswiler, Greg 
Higgs, Tracey Jaggard, Katherine Lines, 
Donna Logan, Penny McKenzie, Gina Mills, 
Gabrielle Peterson.

Gold U17 Female 2 x 1km Beach Run Relay Zalika Cederblad and Sadie Proctor

Gold U17 Female 2Km Beach Run Sadie Proctor

Gold U17 Female Beach Relay Zalika Cederblad, Sadie Proctor, Zalii Reid 
and Airlie Rouvray.

Gold U17 Female Board Race Sadie Proctor

Gold U17 Female Board Rescue Zalika Cederblad and Sadie Proctor

Gold U23 NGS March Past Swai Abbracciavento, Denia Brenchley-
Sheldon, Zalika Cederblad, Mali Gilligan, 
Damon James, Angus Logan, William 
McAvaney, Leo Oliver, Sadie Proctor, 
Summer Thomas, Josh Zeitz and Tillie Zeitz.

Silver Open Female Board Relay Zalika Cederblad, Sadie Proctor and Tillie 
Zeitz. 

Silver Reserve Grade Female Surf Boat Lisa Biggs, Emily Goldy, Kate Liersch, Rachel 
Trowbridge and Jason McGaffin (sweep).

Silver Reserve Grade Male Short Course Surf 
Boat Race

Sam Edwards, Tristan Foord, Keith Mills, 
Tom Smith and Jason McGaffin (sweep).

Silver Reserve Grade Male Surf Boat Sam Edwards, Tristan Foord, Keith Mills, 
Tom Smith and Jason McGaffin (sweep).

Silver U16 Female 2Km Beach Run Zalika Cederblad

Silver U17 Female Board Relay Zalika Cederblad, Sadie Proctor and Tillie 
Zeitz.

Silver U17 Female Ironperson Sadie Proctor

Silver U17 Female Taplin Zalika Cederblad, Sadie Proctor and Tillie 
Zeitz.

Competition Results
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Silver U17 NGS Beach Relay Zalika Cederblad, Damon James, William 
McAvaney and Sadie Proctor.

Silver U19 Female Double Ski Zalika Cederblad and Sadie Proctor.

Silver U19 Male Beach Flags Cale Dellow

Silver U23 Female Short Course Surf Boat Race Shockwaves - Jade Benn, Megan Sinclair, 
Amber Smith, Charlotte Woodroffe and 
Jason McGaffin (sweep).

Silver U23 Female Surf Boat Shockwaves - Jade Benn, Megan Sinclair, 
Amber Smith, Charlotte Woodroffe and 
Jason McGaffin (sweep).

Silver U23 NGS March Past Isabel Berry, Ruby Booij, Hayden Chirgwin, 
Pippi Costello, Kaysha Dellow, Alex 
Gettie, Chloe Harsing, Macklin Harvey, 
Isabella McAvaney, Daisy Proctor, Diesel 
Stevens and Kade Stoodley.

Bronze Open Female Board Race Sadie Proctor

Bronze Open Female Surf Boat Spare Parts - Catherine Clohesy, Stephanie 
Horne, Sara Lane, Kathryn Vogt and Ben 
West (sweep).

Bronze U15 Female 2 x 1km Beach Run Relay Isabella McAvaney and Daisy Proctor.

Bronze U15 Female Beach Relay Denia Brenchley-Sheldon, Isabella 
McAvaney, Daisy Proctor, Summer Thomas.

Bronze U15 Male Beach Sprint Mali Gilligan

Bronze U16 Female Champion Lifesaver Zalika Cederblad

Bronze U16 Female Ironperson Zalika Cederblad

Bronze U16 Female Single Ski Zalika Cederblad

Bronze U16 Female Surf Race Zalika Cederblad

Bronze U17 Female Single Ski Relay Zalika Cederblad, Sadie Proctor and Tillie 
Zeitz.

Bronze U17 Female Surf Teams Swai Abbracciavento, Zalika Cederblad, Sadie 
Proctor and Tillie Zeitz.

Bronze U17 Male Beach Relay Kai Dellow, Damon James, Angus Logan and 
William McAvaney.

Competition Results

South Port Senior State Championship Results 2022... Cont.



62nd Annual Report
56

Gold Men 30-99 200 LC Metre Relay 4x50m 
Obstacle Relay

Composite - Alex Botha

Gold Men 30-44 50 LC Metre Relay 12.5m Line 
Throw

Composite - Alex Botha

Gold Men 30-44 50 LC Metre 50m Free with Fins Alex Botha

Gold Men 30-99 200 LC Metre Relay 4x50m 
Medley Relay

Composite - Alex Botha

Silver Men 30-44 50 LC Metre 50m Manikin Carry Alex Botha

Silver Men 30-44 100 LC Metre 100m Manikin Carry Alex Botha

Bronze Men 30-44 200 LC Metre 200m Obstacle Alex Botha

Bronze Men 30-44 100 LC Metre 100m Manikin Tow Alex Botha

South Port Board Riding State Championship Results 2021

Gold Open Female Malibu Long Board Erika Oemcke

Gold 40+ years Female Long Board Erika Oemcke

Gold 40+ years Female Short Board Erika Oemcke

Silver Open Female Short Board Riding Erika Oemcke

Silver Open Male Malibu Long Board Alex Botha

Silver U15 Female Short Board Riding Daisy Proctor

Bronze 40+ years Male Long Board Stephen Proctor

SLSSA Kozii Enduro 2021 

Pool Rescue State Championship Results 2021

Gold 30-34 Male Kozii Ski Alex Botha

Gold 30-34 Male Kozii Board Alex Botha

Gold U16 Female Kozii Ski Zalika Cederblad

Silver U16 Female Kozii Swim Zalika Cederblad

Silver U16 Female Kozii Iron Zalika Cederblad

Silver U16 Female Kozii Board Zalika Cederblad

Silver U16 Kozii Enduro Gold Zalika Cederblad

Bronze U15 Kozii Board Denia Brenchley-Sheldon

Competition Results
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Gold 140 yrs min Female Beach Relay Laura Odell, Gabrielle Peterson, Kathryn Vogt and 
Catherine Clohesy.

Gold 140 yrs min Female Surf Boat Spare Parts - Stephanie Horne, Sara Lane, Megan 
Syvertsen, Kathryn Vogt and Ben West.

Gold 140 yrs min NGS Beach Relay Alex Botha, James Burrows, Laura Odell and 
Gabrielle Peterson.

Gold 160 yrs min Female Surf Boat Seedy Seals - Lisa Biggs, Mary Carr, Catherine 
Clohesy, Rachel Trowbridge and Brad Vogt 
(sweep).

Gold 260 Yrs NGS Surf Boat Norman Churchman, Chris Foord, Lyndon Mills, 
Richard Olesinski O.A.M. and Keith Mills (sweep).

Gold 30-34 yrs Male Single Ski Dale Thomson

Gold 30-39 yrs Male Double Ski Alex Botha and Dale Thomson.

Gold 35-39 yrs Male Beach Flags Alex Botha

Gold 40-44 yrs Female Single Ski Kathryn Vogt

Gold 40-44 yrs Male 2Km Beach Run James Burrows

Gold 40-49 yrs Female Double Ski Megan Syvertsen and Kathryn Vogt

Silver 110 yrs min Male Board Relay Alex Botha, Steve Proctor and Dale Thomson.

Silver 110 yrs min Male Surf Teams Alex Botha, Leigh Chirgwin, Dale Thomson.

Silver 130 yrs min Female Board Relay Stephanie Horne, Erika Oemcke and Sue 
Williams.

Silver 170 yrs min Male Beach Relay Alex Botha, James Burrows, Barry Dellow Jnr, 
and Richard Thomas.

Silver 30-34 yrs Female 2Km Beach Run Gabrielle Peterson

Silver 30-34 yrs Female Board Race Gabrielle Peterson

Silver 30-34 yrs Male Ironperson Dale Thomson

Silver 30-34 yrs Male Surf Race Dale Thomson

Silver 30-39 yrs Male Board Rescue Alex Botha and Dale Thomson.

Silver 35-39 yrs Female Beach Flags Laura Odell

Silver 35-39 yrs Female Surf Race Rachel Trowbridge

Silver 35-39 yrs Male 2Km Beach Run Alex Botha

Silver 35-39 yrs Male Board Race Alex Botha

Silver 35-39 yrs Male Single Ski Alex Botha

Competition Results

South Port Masters State Championship Results 2022
5th Place Overall - 350 points
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Competition Results

Silver 40-44 yrs Female Beach Flags Kathryn Vogt

Silver 40-44 yrs Female Beach Sprint Kathryn Vogt

Silver 40-44 yrs Female Ironperson Kathryn Vogt

Silver 45-49 yrs Male Board Race Stephen Proctor

Silver 55-59 yrs Female Board Race Erika Oemcke

Bronze 130 yrs min Female Surf Teams Maggie Botha, Erika Oemcke and Sue 
Williams.

Bronze 130 yrs min Female Taplin Maggie Botha, Erika Oemcke and Sue 
Williams.

Bronze 130 yrs min Male Taplin Alex Botha, Leigh Chirgwin and Stephen Proctor.

Bronze 200 yrs min Male Surf Boat Michael Goldfinch, Steven Kille, Malcolm Rudd, 
Damian Taylor and Keith Mills (sweep).

Bronze 30-34 yrs Female 2Km Beach Run Stephanie Horne

Bronze 30-34 yrs Female Beach Flags Stephanie Horne

Bronze 30-34 yrs Female Beach Sprint Gabrielle Peterson

Bronze 30-34 yrs Female Surf Race Gabrielle Peterson

Bronze 30-34 yrs Male Board Race Dale Thomson

Bronze 30-39 yrs Female Board Rescue Rachel Trowbridge and Gabrielle Peterson.

Bronze 35-39 yrs Female 2Km Beach Run Marg Botha

Bronze 35-39 yrs Female Beach Flags Marg Botha

Bronze 35-39 yrs Female Beach Sprint Laura Odell

Bronze 35-39 yrs Female Board Race Rachel Trowbridge

Bronze 35-39 yrs Male Beach Sprint Alex Botha

Bronze 35-39 yrs Male Ironperson Alex Botha

Bronze 35-39 yrs Male Surf Race Alex Botha

Bronze 40-44 yrs Female 2Km Beach Run Kathryn Vogt

Bronze 45-49 yrs Male Board Race Barry Dellow Jnr

Bronze 50-54 yrs Female Beach Sprint Sue Williams

Bronze 50-59 yrs Female Board Rescue Erika Oemcke and Sue Williams

Bronze 55-59 yrs Female Surf Race Erika Oemcke
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WEEKLY SWIM CHAMPIONS 2021-2022 MALE WEEKLY SWIM CHAMPIONS 2021-2022 FEMALE

Junior Male Bailey James Junior Female Zoe Williams

U/14 Male Kade Stoodley U/14 Female Bella McAvaney

U/15 Male Leo Oliver U/15 Female Swai Abbracciavento

U/17 Male Damon James U/17 Female Not Contested

U/19 Male Not Contested U/19 Female Not Contested

Open Male Not Contested Open Female Not Contested

Over 30 Masters Alex Botha Over 30 Masters Gabrielle Peterson

Over 40 Masters Richard Thomas Over 40 Masters Not Contested

Over 50 Masters Greg Higgs Over 50 Masters Sue Williams 

Over 60 Masters Robert Scammell Over 60 Masters Not Contested

OVERALL WEEKLY SWIM CHAMPION

Male		  Bailey James

Female		 Swai Abbracciavento

48th Long Swim Results

Fastest Overall		  Xabian Cederblad

Fastest Male			   Xabian Cederblad (18.15)

Fastest Female		  Zalika Cederblad (20.24)

First Male over the Line	 Damon James

First Female over the Line	 Daisy Proctor

First Male-Half Swim		  Finn Gilligan

First Female-Half Swim	 Harper Molenaar

Youngest Competitor 		 Grace Syvertsen

Oldest Competitor		  Robert Scammell

Weekly & Annual long Swim
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Weekly & Annual long Swim

Surf Race and 48th Long Swim Report 2021

Well it’s hard to believe the season is coming to a close. I am amazed we only lost two surf races to Covid 
this season. The surf club members have been ever so vigilant in their response to a very serious health 
matter that our Club has responded to so successfully.

Thanks to Deborah Oliver, Shaun James and Melissa Thomas for their assistance in the administration of 
the weekly swim. Aaron Oliver and Alex Botha for their selfless assistance in organising and laying the 
cans, plus assuring that there was always adequate water cover.

I must thank our Club Captain Lyndon Mills for all his work and help, and every Patrol Captain for their 
cooperation as well as all the patrols that have made a large contribution to the success of the races.

The Long Swim continues to run with success and enthusiasm. Everyone involved really works hard to bring 
along the “can do” attitude. There is a core group of ladies who work hard behind the scenes, I really thank 
you all. Numbers of competitors are always high and the Junior Club seems to embrace this day every year. 
Keep up the good work. It is also nice to be able thank Dennis ‘’Congo’’ and Dawn Ferrett for their 
continued support via the prizes for the Long Swim. They have done this for many years.

Then there are all the competitors who front up every week to participate in a competitive swim. We had 
between 15 and 30 competitors each swim along with some very vocal spectators. Thank you all for your 
encouragement.

I have just read the results of the South Port SLSC competitors who competed in the 2022 Australian Surf 
Life Saving Championships compiled by Kylie Cederblad. What an amazing set of results. Congratulations 
to you all. Then to cap that off I opened my Onkaparinga Council rates to find my edition of Onkaparinga 
Now. Page 2 & 3 was dedicated to the City of Onkaparinga’s young citizen of the year 2022. Leo Oliver. 
Well done Leo. This is what it is all about in preparing all the young people of our Club to be confident that 
when the occasion arises they are ready to respond.

These results and achievements create an environment for older senior members to continue assisting our 
great Community based Club.

It is a real pleasure supporting the young people of South Port.

Andy Higgs
Race Organiser  



2021-2022 Broadbeach/North Kirra QLD

35-39yrs Board Race
Silver Medal - Alex Botha 

160 Women’s Surf Boats
Bronze Medal - Seedy Seals - Rachel Trowbridge, Megan Syvertsen, Lisa Biggs, Mary Carr, 

Jason McGaffin (sweep).

35-39yrs Ironperson
Bronze Medal - Alex Botha
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Sadie Proctor   0   1 0 1

Zalika Cederblad   0   1 0 1

Australian Open & Masters
Championship - Medallists ‘22

Medallists Gold Silver Bronze Total

96 200 31 189 420

OPEN MEDALLISTS TOTAL

2021-2022 Broadbeach/North Kirra QLD

U17 2x1km Run
Silver Medal - Sadie Proctor and Zalika Cederblad

Megan Syvertsen 0 0 1 1

Rachel Trowbridge 0 0 1 1

Alex Botha 0 1 1 2

Lisa Biggs 0 0 1 1

Mary Carr 0 0 1 1

Jason McGaffin 0 0 1 1

Medallists Gold Silver Bronze Total

19 5 11 7 25

2022 Open Medallists

MASTERS MEDALLISTS TOTAL

2022 Masters Medallists
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SLSSA STATE AWARD WINNER
Coach of the Year - Alex Botha

Congratulations to Alex Botha who took out Coach of the Year at the Surf Life Saving SA State 
Awards! 

Alex has been a member of South Port Surf Life Saving Club since 1991. He grew up participating in 
the Nipper program, competing as a Senior/Master competitor and now he is supporting his 2 children 
through the Nipper Program. He is the Junior Coach, Senior Board/Iron Coach, Coach Mentor and assists 
with Ski Coaching, active patrolling member (146.50 current season) and Senior/Masters competitor.

Each week Alex runs: 2 Junior Board sessions, 2 Senior Board sessions, 1 Iron session, Nippers on 
Saturdays, assist and runs 2 ski sessions, in addition to attending Nipper and Senior Carnivals, 8@8, 
competing himself in Seniors and Masters events.

Alex has been an integral part of South Port’s growth and improved results in the Junior and Senior 
competition groups.

Results for the 2022 Season

Senior Team 5th at 2022 Senior State Championships, improving from the 2021 season where the Club 
came 8th and a 53% point improvement. 

Seniors Board and Iron Medals and top 6 places – 3 Golds, 4 Silver, 2 Bronze, 4 fourths, 1 Fifth and 4 six 
places.

Nippers came 6th with a 7% increase in points from the 2021 season. There were so many amazing 
results across the Juniors in all 3 divisions. 

Alex supported our Senior Aussies Board and Ski 2022 team, the biggest team to attend in a number of 
years.

South Port’s U17 females made the Taplin Final, Ski Relay Final, and U19 Double Ski Final and a silver 
medal in the U17 2x1km Run.

Alex was selected as a Team Leader for the Air Diffusion SA Surf League Team, taking on this role and 
the athletes with the same passion he has for South Port members. He was also selected as the Team 
Manager for the SA Reds Team, unfortunately due to contracting COVID-19 he was unable to attend. 

While the Clubs athletes results have improved, the most significant impact Alex has is on the Clubs 
culture. Leading by example: respect, fun, serving the community, volunteering, giving it your best has 
seen the Clubs membership grow the past couple of years. 

Alex is an outstanding role model who is engaging, patient, a strong communicator with the ability to 
adapt training sessions according to abilities and conditions. At training sessions he is in the water, 
motivating athletes as a group and individually. Alex’s confidence and support encourages our athletes to 
have a go in any conditions, even when the surf is up, which is evident by the numbers attending training. 

His passion for surf not only influences members of South Port but extending to other Clubs. We often 
have members of other Clubs train with our Seniors and he is a strong advocate and organiser of our joint 
training sessions with Port Noarlunga.
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SLSSA STATE AWARD WINNER
Coach of the Year - Alex Botha

Alex’s passion for Surf Lifesaving permeates throughout the Club, from all the parents who help to do 
water cover at Nipper board training and Saturday Nippers, all the parents who competed at the 2021 
Masters State Championships, the parents who are taking an interest in assisting in coaching the Nippers 
and families who continue to bring their children to Nippers.

South Port are privileged and proud to have an inspiring leader and mentor who just by doing what he 
loves has such a significant impact on so many.

CONGRATULATIONS AGAIN ALEX... SO WELL DESERVED!
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South Port SLSC
Long Service Awards

Congratulations to five of our wonderful Members for achieving the prestigious awards of 60 year and 50 
year Surf Life Saving Long Service in 2021/22. 

Life Member, Geoffrey Price, has reached the amazing pinnacle of 60 years long service. He joins the 
very esteemed group of 10 members in South Australia to hold this award - six of them being from South 
Port! 

Life Members, Simon Linden, Robin Atkinson and Dennis Ferrett along with Raymond Martin Jnr all 
reached their 50 year long service milestone this season which is an incredible achievement.

Between these five great and committed members, they have collectively provided over 280 years 
service to our Club and to the Surf Life Saving Association - a truly astonishing and humbling fact. They 
form part of who we are as a Club, and their years of dedication and service allow us to enjoy the culture 
and success we have had in the past, that we do at present and that we will in the future. 

On behalf of all members of South Port SLSC, we congratulate Geoff, Simon, Robin, Congo and Hooray 
for achieving these long service awards and thank them for their years of service and unwavering support 
of the Club!



62nd Annual Report
65

Foundation Members

D J Alexander		 G A Cornwell		  R A Edge		  G M Ellery		  M L Elliot

C E Hann		  G W Hann		  A C Harris		  F M Harris		  G C R Price

Life Members

1969   L Evans   G Ferrett   G Hann   D McLeod   R Mayo AM   G Price   

1974   C Gibbons                  

1975   D Alexander   C Foord               

1976   G A Higgs                  

1980   M Shead   J Smith   Y Stephens   K Watt   P Wooden      

1982   S Binks                  

1985   M Wooden                  

1986   J Watt   T Horton               

1987   B Dixon   D Gardner   F Harris   P Keelan   S Linden      

1991   J Nearmy                  

1992   D Watt                  

1994   
R Olesinski 
OAM  

               

1995   M Chilman                  

1996   P Sutton                  

1999   R Martin   G Moffat   C Mullins   T Smallwood         

2001   B Johns                  

2002   G Eastham                  

2003   G Higgs                  

2005   R Atkinson   B Lyons               

2007   J Devitt   M Etheridge   Y Olesinski            

2010   D Colegate   D Ferrett               

2012   M Goldfinch                  

2015  I Hodgen  J Puplett          

2016  J Whitmee  L Colegate  S Campbell        

2017 M Copley

2018 J Hall OAM

2019 P Howse S Giebel J McGaffin A Emswiler

2021 N Berry L Mills

Foundation & Life Members
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Season President Captain Secretary Treasurer Chief Instructor

1959-60 G Cornwall F Harris G Price G Price

1960-61 F Harris G Price R Mayo AM/ 
F Coppins

D McLeod

1961-62 H Knapman-
Jones

G Price D McLeod D McLeod G M Ellery

1962-63 H Knapman-
Jones

G Price D McLeod D McLeod G Hann

1963-64 L Evans G Price D McLeod G Foster D McLeod

1964-65 L Evans G Price D McLeod R Mayo AM D McLeod/
R Mayo AM

1965-66 L Evans G Price M Keelan R Mayo AM G Hann

1966-67 L Evans G Price R Mayo AM R Mayo AM G Hann

1967-68 L Evans G M Ellery R Mayo AM R Mayo AM G Hann

1968-69 L Evans D McLeod/
R Mayo AM

G Price G Price B Dixon

1969-70 L Evans R Roe/ 
C Gibbons

M Keelan P Keelan B Dixon

1970-71 L Evans C Gibbons G Baker P Keelan B Dixon

1971-72 L Evans C Gibbons G Baker P Keelan B Wilson

1972-73 L Evans C Gibbons J Hayes G Baker D Richards

1973-74 L Evans C Gibbons R Mayo AM G Baker D Richards

1974-75 G Price G A Higgs B Wilson/ 
B Manning

F Blatchford/
G Price

K Gardner

1975-76 G Price G A Higgs J Smith B Manning M Shead

1976-77 G Price G A Higgs J Smith J Smith G Hann

1977-78 G Price G A Higgs J Smith J Smith G Hann

1978-79 G Price G A Higgs J Smith J Smith M Shead

1979-80 G Price S Linden J Smith J Smith M Shead

1980-81 G Price S Linden J Smith J Smith M Shead

1981-82 G Price S Linden J Smith/ 
S Linden

J Smith/ 
M Wooden

M Shead

1982-83 G Price S Linden G Moffat M Wooden M Shead

1983-84 G Price S Linden G Moffat M Wooden M Shead

Honour Roll
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Honour Roll

Season President Captain Secretary Treasurer Chief Instructor

1984-85 G Price M Wooden G Moffat S Linden M Shead

1985-86 G Hann P Mayo G Moffat S Linden M Shead

1986-87 G Hann D Watt M Shead I Hodgen M Shead

1987-88 R Pummeroy D Watt J Smith E Sutherland/ 
L Maxwell

J Nearmy

1988-89 R Pummeroy D Watt J Smith L Maxwell/ 
S Linden

J Nearmy

1989-90 R Pummeroy D Watt J Smith R Martin J Nearmy

1990-91 J Smith D Watt B Johns R Martin J Nearmy

1991-92 J Smith D Watt B Johns R Martin J Nearmy

1992-93 J Smith D Watt B Johns C Hegarty J Nearmy

1993-94 P Sutton D Watt B Johns/ 
D Donnelly

M Wooden J Nearmy

1994-95 P Sutton T Nearmy C Mullins M Wooden I Burton

1995-96 P Sutton T Nearmy/ 
S Bentley

C Mullins M Wooden I Burton

1996-97 C Foord S Bentley C Mullins M Wooden D Colgate

1997-98 C Foord G Higgs C Mullins G Moffat D Colgate

1998-99 C Foord G Higgs C Mullins G Moffat D Colgate/ 
A Whitford

1999-00 C Foord G Higgs C Mullins D Alexander A Whitford

2000-01 C Foord J Devitt C Mullins D Alexander M Etheridge

2001-02 C Foord J Devitt C Mullins D Alexander M Etheridge

2002-03 C Foord J Devitt B Johns D Alexander M Etheridge

2003-04 C Foord J Hegarty J Smith D Alexander M Etheridge

2004-05 J Devitt J Hegarty J Smith D Alexander M Etheridge

2005-06 J Devitt M Etheridge J Smith D Alexander C Whitmee

2006-07 J Devitt M Etheridge J Smith D Alexander S Giebel

2007-08 J Devitt M Etheridge J Smith D Alexander S Giebel

2008-09 J Devitt M Etheridge J Smith D Alexander S Giebel

2009-10 J Devitt M Etheridge J Smith D Alexander S Campbell

2010-11 J Devitt M Etheridge/ 
A Bedford

J Smith D Alexander S Campbell
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Season President Captain Secretary Treasurer Chief Instructor

2011-12 J Devitt A Bedford J Smith D Alexander S Campbell

2012-13 J Devitt A Votino J Smith D Alexander S Campbell

2013-14 J Devitt A Votino M Copley D Alexander S Campbell

2014-15 J Devitt A Bedford M Copley D Alexander A Votino/ 
A Bedford

2015-16 J Devitt A Bedford/ 
B Tanner

M Copley D Alexander A Bedford/
S Campbell

2016-17 M Campbell L Mills M Copley D Alexander B Fisher

2017-18 R Olesinski 
OAM

L Mills M Copley D Alexander Vacant

Season President Captain Secretary Treasurer Senior Lifesaving 
Education Officer

2018-19 R Olesinski OAM L Mills M Copley D Alexander I Boys/N Lee

2019-20 R Olesinski OAM L Mills N Berry C Stoodley N Lee

2020-21 R Olesinski OAM L Mills N Berry C Stoodley N Lee

2021-22 R Olesinski OAM L MIlls N Berry I Hodgon N Lee

Honour Roll
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Abbracciavento
Ainsworth
Ainsworth
Ainsworth
Ainsworth
Alexander
Allen
Angel
Argent
Argent
Armstrong
Armstrong
Armstrong
As
Atkins
Atkinson
Atkinson
Bailey
Bailey
Bainger
Bainger
Barker
Beluche de Rodriguez
Benn
Benn
Benn
Benn
Bennet
Berghofer
Berry
Berry
Biggs
Boers
Boers
Boers
Bohn
Bohn
Booij
Booij
Booij
Booij
Booij
Botha
Botha
Botha
Botha
Botha
Botha

Swai
Alan
Jodie
Lucy
Tom
Paula
Thomas
Jamie
Austin
Ben
Owen
Scott
Summer
Musa
Mylie
David
Robin
Alix
Ava
Carli
Ivy
Barbara
Silvia
Gordon
Jade
Reece
Tanya
Emily
Judith
Isabel
Nicole
Lisa
Daisy
Finn
Michael
David
Rachel
Lilian
Matilda
Melanie
Robert
Ruby
Alex
Austin
Grace
Judith
Marg
Sally-Ann

Claire
Ian
Denia
Matt
Archer
Chris
James
Oscar
Poppy
Sara
Michael
Sharryn
Mary
Thomas
Brennan
Susan
Tatum
Paul
Kylie
Murray
Xabian
Zalika
John
Noelene
Sophorn
Martin
Hayden
Leigh
Ryan
Mark
Norman
Catherine
Steven
Jason
Dean
Elizabeth
Billy
Jonathan
Michelle
Talon
Tiffany
Wayne
Annabelle
Gracie
Lee
Craig
Leroy
Pippi

Bowden
Boys
Brenchley-Sheldon
Burgess
Burns
Burns
Burrows
Burrows
Burrows
Burrows
Campbell
Campbell
Carr
Carr-Hayball
Carter
Carter
Carter
Catchpole
Cederblad
Cederblad
Cederblad
Cederblad
Charles
Charles
Chea
Chilman
Chirgwin
Chirgwin
Christie
Christmas
Churchman
Clohesy
Clohesy
Cloonan
Colegate
Colegate
Cook
Cook
Copley
Copley
Copley
Copley
Coppin
Coppin
Coppin
Costello
Costello
Costello

Membership 2021-2022
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Costello
Cragg
Craggs
Cunningham
Cunningham
Cunningham
Cunningham
Darling
Darling
Davidson
Davidson
Debono
Debono
Debono
Debono
Delbridge
Dellow
Dellow
Dellow
Dellow
Dellow Jnr
Devitt
Dixon
Dobson
Donlan
Donlan
Donlan
Drake
Eales
Eastham
Eastham
Edge
Edge
Edwards
Edwards
Egel
Emswiler
Evans
Evans
Feldman
Ferrett
Ferrett
Fisher
Fisher
Fisher
Fisher
Fletcher
Fletcher

Flynn
Flynn
Flynn
Flynn
Foord
Foord
Foord
Foord
Foster
Foster
Foster
Foster
Foster
Fotia
Fotia
Fotia
Fox
Freebairn
Freebairn
Freebairn
Freebairn
Frost
Frost
Frost
Gardner
Gates
Gates
Gates
Gettie
Gettie
Gettie
Gettie
Gibson
Gibson
Gibson
Giebel
Giebel
Giebel
Giebel
Giebel
Giebel
Giebel
Giebel
Gilligan
Gilligan
Gilligan
Gilligan
Gold

Rachel
Gavin
Layla
Axel
Piper
Richard
Tania
Eden
Janette
Laura
Tameka
Audrey
Cosette
Ian
Luke
David
Cale
Kai
Kaysha
Rosalie
Barry
John
Brian
Mark
Duane
Helen
Tamarin
Franklin
Nathan
Gary
Jacqueline
Laurence
Timothy
Paul
Samuel
Kyle
Anita
Lincoln
Scott
Mark
David
Dennis
Amber
Anna
Brett
Brooke
Melanie
Riley

Aidan
John
Kylie
Mikayla
Christopher
Diana
Evie
Tristan
Athena
Jarrod
Katherine
Leonardo
Ziva
Abby
Emma
Gregory
Nicholas
Claire
Indah
Karim
Zia
Carly
David
Luka
David
Caine
Eline
Oscar
Alexander
Jasmine
Scott
Sharon
Lauren
Rosie
Todd
Aisha
Kai
Karl
Korena
Rosalie
Siegfried
Vanda-lee
Wyatt
Finn
Mali
Robyn
Sami
Anthony

Membership 2021-2022
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Gold
Goldfinch
Goldy
Goldy
Gordon
Gordon
Gordon
Gore
Gore
Gore
Gore
Gratwick
Greaves
Greer
Greer
Greer
Greer
Grzegowski
Grzegowski
Grzegowski
Grzegowski
Gutschmidt
Hall O.A.M.
Hammond
Hammond
Hansen
Hansen
Hansen
Hansen
Harris
Harsing
Harsing
Harsing
Harsing
Harvey
Harvey
Hassan
Hassan
Hatwell
Hatwell
Hatwell
Hatwell
Hayball
Heher
Heher
Hendry
Hendry
Hendry

Nicholas
Michael
Christopher
Emily
Craig
Isla
Jane
Darren
Jake
Katherine
Mitchell
Peter
Alexander
Campbell
Emilie
Harper
Maya
Bonnie
Casey
Holly
Ryan
Courtney
John
Belinda
Jacasta
Ben
Danielle
Jake
Kristian
Trevor
Chloe
Francis
Isabel
Olivia
Brett
Macklin
Brooklyn
Kate
Aedan
Brianna
Matthew
Niamh
Clayton
Kevin
Scott
Keiran
Kelly-Anne
Matt

Hendry
Hendy
Heritage
Higgs
Higgs
Higgs
Higgs
Higgs
Hill
Hodgen
Hogarth
Hogarth
Hogarth
Hogarth
Horne
Horton
Howse
Howse
Howse
Howse
Howse
Howse
Howse
Ip
Ip
Ip
Irwin
Iversen
Iversen
Iversen
Jackson
Jackson
Jaggard
Jaggard
James
James
James
James
James
Johns
Johns
Jones
Jones
Keelan
Kille
Kille
Kille
Kille

Nicole
Nicole
Leigh
Graham
Gregory
Joshua
Judith
Thomas
Laura
Ian
Joel
Kylie
Oscar
William
Stephanie
Tony
Braxton
Chase
Nathan
Nicole
Paul
Pearl
Rosemary
Jarrod
Jessica
Malia
Lynsey
Claire
Eli
Matthew
Lisa
Lola
Steven
Tracey
Bailey
Chloe
Damon
Delilah
Shaun
Brian
Joshua
Clayton
Kirsty-Lee
Peter
Benjamin
Isobel
Matthew
Stephen

Membership 2021-2022
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Kille
Kline
Laffin
Lane
Latty
Latty
Lawton
Lawton
Lee
Lee
Lee
Lee
Lee-Coates
Liersch
Liersch
Liersch
Liersch
Liersch
Lilburn
Lilburn
Linden
Lines
Lines
Lines
Lines
Lines
Lipman
Lipman
Lipman
Lipman
Logan
Logan
Logan
Logan
Lohse
Lohse
Lohse
Longbottom
Love
Lynch
Lynch
Lynch
Lynch
Maloney
Mangelsdorf
Mangelsdorf
Mangelsdorf
Mangelsdorf

Mangos
Mangos
Mangos
Mangos
Mann
Martin
Matthews
Mayo
McAvaney
McAvaney
McAvaney
McAvaney
McAvaney
McGaffin
McGaffin
Mcgibbon
Mcgibbon
Mcgibbon
Mcgibbon
Mcilwaine
McKenzie
McKenzie
McKenzie
McKenzie
Mcreynolds
Mcreynolds
Mcreynolds
Mcreynolds
McWhinney
Mills
Mills
Mills
Molenaar
Molenaar
Molenaar
Molenaar
Molenaar
Morgan
Morris
Morris
Morris
Nahlous
Nahlous
Nearmy
Nearmy
Nearmy
Nearmy
Nearmy

Tracy
Trevor
Isabelle
Sara
Hugo
Willow
Bradley
Kiata
Daniel
Kaiden
Shen
Taj
Felicity
Bianca
Byron
Edith
Kate
Scott
Luke
Molly
Simon
Cooper
Katherine
Scott
Sienna
Xavier
Elizabeth
Olivia
Skip
Vaiben
Angus
Donna
Izaac
Steve
Michael
Sean
Sharon
Talia
Aaron
Abel
Carly
Sean
Vada Mae
Monica
Catherine
Charli
Eadie
Jacob

Kassia
Miesha
Nicholas
Prudence
Michael
Raymond
Wendy
Robert
Grace
Isabella
Liam
Tracy
William
Cayla
Jason
Carlie
Carrie Ann
Gary
Jayden
David
Anthony
Jake
Penelope
Thomas
Casey
Gary
Nicola
Zak
Coral
Gina
Keith
Lyndon
Cooper
Daniel
Harper
Megan
Paris
Robert
Cameron
McKenzie
Molly
Michelle
Stephen
Amelia
Chloe
Ella
John
Travis

Membership 2021-2022
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Nitschke
Nitschke
Nitschke
Nitschke
Odell
Odell
Odell
Oemcke
Olesinski
Olesinski
Olesinski O.A.M.
Oliver
Oliver
Oliver
Oliver
Ollerenshaw
Orr
Orr
Orr
Orr
Ortiz Barbosa
Peel
Peel
Perkins
Perkins
Perkins
Peterson
Peterson
Peterson
Peterson
Philps
Pooley
Pooley
Prance
Price
Price
Priscan
Proctor
Proctor
Proctor
Proctor
Proctor
Puplett
Radcliffe
Rarity
Rarity

Axel
Elias
Luke
Rachel
Duane
Jasmin
Laura
Erika
Stefan
Yvonne
Richard
Aaron
Debra
Franklin
Leo
Neil
Alana
Eliza
Mark
Rosemary
Manuela
Addison
Michael
Ashton
Jay
Sara
Aaron
Gabrielle
Imogen
Mackenzie
Debra
Dale
Katharine
Michael
Geoffrey
Maree
Daniel
Daisy
Eliza Scout
Kerri
Sadie
Stephen
Janet
Rob
Gil
Magnus

Reddaway
Reeves
Rodriguez
Rodriguez-Beluche
Rodriguez-Beluche
Rudd
Rudd
Rylander
Rylander
Rylander
Rylander
Sandover
Sandover
Scammell
Scholz
Scholz
Schutze
Schutze
Schutze
Schutze
Selke
Selke
Shanko
Shanko
Shanko
Shanko
Shanko
Sheldon
Simpson
Simpson
Sinclair
Sinclair
Sinclair
Slater
Slater
Slater
Smith
Smith
Smith
Smith
Smith
Smith
Smith
Softley
Spaan
Spaan

Stephen
Jayden
Zack
Matteo
Nicolas
Linda
Malcolm
Alexis
Ben
Cooper
Stacey
Emilia
Yvonne
Robert
Glen
Max
Lily
Mike
Pearl
Sarah
Bella
Mark
Amarens
Harlen
Isa
Kain
Senn
Gwyneth
Benjamin
Sunny
Deborah
Gavin
Megan
Amelie
Lynley
Russell
Amber
Austin
Craig
John
Marsha
Patrick
Thomas
Jordan
Aidan
Lily

Membership 2021-2022
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Membership 2021-2022

Spaan
Stephens
Stephens
Stevens
Stevens
Stevens
Stevens
Stevens
Stoodley
Stoodley
Stoodley
Stoodley
Strathearn
Strathearn
Sutton
Syvertsen
Syvertsen
Syvertsen
Syvertsen
Szolnoki
Taylor
Taylor
Taylor
Taylor
Taylor
Taylor Mugford
Thomas
Thomas
Thomas
Thomas
Thomas
Thomas
Thomas
Thomas
Thomas
Thomas
Thomson
Thomson
Thomson
Thorneycroft
Thorneycroft
Thorneycroft
Trowbridge
Trowbridge
Trowbridge
Trowbridge

Tanya
Kevin
Yvonne
Bobbie-Jean
Cleo
Diesel
Jett
Shane
Andrew
Axel
Cassandra
Kade
Andrew
Michael
Peter
Grace
Marcus
Megan
Pippa
Tibor
Alex
Catherine
Clare
Damian
Jenny
Olivia
Bejay
Harry
Helen
Joseph
Kenya
Melissa
Richard
Ruby
Sarah
Summer
Dale
Ky
Zoe
Isabel
John
Nongnuch
Acacia
Ashton
Rachel
Wayne

Upitis
Upitis
Upitis
Upitis
Vogt
Vogt
Vogt
Vogt
Vogt
Walker
Walker
Walker
Walker
Walsh
Waters
Waters
Waters
Watt
Watt
Watt
Watt
Watt
Webster
West
Whitehorn
Whitmee
Whitmee
Williams
Williams
Wingfield
Wingfield
Witte
Witte
Wooden
Wooden
Woodroffe
Wright
Wright
Wright
Wright
Youlten
Zeitz
Zeitz
Zeitz
Zeitz

Isabelle
Kylie
Luke
William
Bradley
Daniel
Jenna
Kathryn
Kayla
Abby
Oliver
Oscar
Simon
Kerry
Brianna
Paul
Willow
Alicia
David
Ian
June
Kevin
Mark
Ben
Peter
Jennifer
Mark
Sue
Zoe
Asha
Ben
Marc
Zoe
Mark
Peter
Charlotte
Corrina
Daniel
Koen
Mia
Michelle
Carla
Joshua
Paul
Tillie
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A u d i t o r s  R e p o r t



A4
62nd Annual Report

South Port  SLSC
ABN 51 114 459 582

Committee’s Report 				    A5

Income Statement							       A6

Balance Sheet								        A8

Notes to the Financia l  Statements							       A9

Statement by Members of Committee						      A14

Independent Audit  Report 								        A15

Cert i f icate by Members of Committee 	 A17

C o n t e n t s



A5
62nd Annual Report

For the year ended 30 April 2022
Committee's report
ABN: 51 114 459 582

South Port SLSC

Dated   01 July 2022

______________________________________________
Ian Hodgen  (Treasurer)

______________________________________________
Richard Olesinski  (President)

Operating result

The profit of the Association for the financial year after providing for income tax amounted to $1,198.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the members of the committee:

Significant changes

No significant change in the nature of these activities occurred during the year.

Surf Life Saving

Principal activities

The principal activity of the association during the financial year is:

Danni Hansen 
Sara Lane 
Noelene Lee 
Aaron Oliver 
Mark Dobson 
Nicole Berry (Secretary)
Lyndon Mills 
Kylie Cederblad 
Penny McKenzie 
Ian Hodgen (Treasurer)
Richard Olesinski (President)

Your committee members submit the financial report of South Port SLSC for the financial year ended 30 April 
2022.

Committee members

The names of the committee members throughout the year and at the date of this report are:
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26,094.6931,045.43Premises and Facilities
13,254.7912,353.23Life Saving

8,017.7411,514.13Insurance
33,925.7016,885.32General Administration

2,320.981,609.58Finance Expenses
5,289.006,118.41Equipment

48,151.4540,588.71Depreciation - Lifesaving
18,133.7518,283.69Depreciation - Competition

3,841.204,479.20Depreciation - Admin
14,759.3614,394.80Competition

Expenses

296,774.58164,300.62

259,493.86133,436.56

6,839.003,342.72Sundry Revenue
19,942.0922,644.36Sponsorship

7,772.71154.55Profit on Sale of Non-current Assets
44,549.1442,059.25Membership Fees

1,898.89102.87Interest Received
-1,116.00Insurance Claims

8,205.46590.89Hire of Club Facilities
36,696.2047,721.25Grants
20,156.129,506.92Fundraising

4,780.245,923.75Donations
5,201.00-Current Year Stock Adjustment

102,843.40-Current Year Balance Sheet Adjustment
609.61274.00Bottle Recycling

Other income

37,280.7230,864.06Gross profit from trading

71,048.2952,388.23

(13,454.00)(17,329.00)Closing inventories
65,847.2956,263.23Purchases
18,655.0013,454.00Opening inventories

Less: cost of sales

108,329.0183,252.29

190.92-Training Income
9,752.702,384.94Canteen Sales

18,933.2219,333.64Apparel Sales
79,452.1761,533.71Bar Sales

For the year ended 30 April 2022
Income statement
ABN: 51 114 459 582

South Port SLSC

$$
20212022

Sales

Page 2

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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For the year ended 30 April 2022
Income statement
ABN: 51 114 459 582

South Port SLSC

$$
20212022

785,775.43786,973.21Retained earnings at the end of the financial year

663,371.20785,775.43Retained earnings at the beginning of the financial year
122,404.231,197.78Net profit

174,370.35163,102.84

581.695,830.34Sundry Expenses

Page 3

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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For the year ended 30 April 2022
Balance sheet
ABN: 51 114 459 582

South Port SLSC

$$
20212022Note

785,775.43786,973.21Total members' funds

785,775.43786,973.21Retained earnings

Members' funds
785,775.43786,973.21Net assets

2,457.01175.94Total liabilities

2,457.01175.94Total current liabilities

2,457.01175.947Trade and other payables
Current liabilities

788,232.44787,149.15Total assets

484,262.97467,110.04Total non-current assets

484,262.97467,110.046Property, plant and equipment
Non-current assets

303,969.47320,039.11Total current assets

13,463.0017,338.005Inventories
675.752,377.694Trade and other receivables

289,830.72300,323.423Cash and cash equivalents
Current assets

Page 4

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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For the year ended 30 April 2022
Notes to the financial statements
ABN: 51 114 459 582

South Port SLSC

Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated.

Surf Life Saving

The principal activity of the association for the year ended 30 April 2022 is:

The financial statements cover South Port SLSC as an individual entity. South Port SLSC is a 
not-for-profit association incorporated in South Australia under the Associations Incorporation Act 1985 
('the Act').

Basis of preparation

In the opinion of the committee of management, South Port SLSC is not a reporting entity since there 
are unlikely to exist users of the financial statements who are not able to command the preparation of 
reports tailored so as to satisfy specifically all of their information needs. These special purpose financial
statements have been prepared to meet the reporting requirements of the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement 
requirements of the Australian Accounting Standards and Accounting Interpretations, and the disclosure 
requirements of AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, AASB 107 Statement of Cash Flows, 
AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors and AASB 1054 Australian
Additional Disclosures.

The financial statements and material accounting policies all comply with the recognition and 
measurement requirements in the Australian Accounting Standards.

1

Summary of significant accounting policies2

Income tax

The association is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised on transfer of goods to the customer as this is deemed to be the point in time 
when risks and rewards are transferred and there is no longer any ownership or effective control over 
the goods.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that 
economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Association and specific criteria 
relating to the type of revenue as noted below, has been satisfied.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is presented net 
of returns, discounts and rebates.

Page 5
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For the year ended 30 April 2022
Notes to the financial statements
ABN: 51 114 459 582

South Port SLSC

Interest revenue

Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments 
which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
change in value.

Leases

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all of the risks and benefits remain with the 
lessor, are charged as expenses on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease term.

At the end of each annual reporting period, the depreciation method, useful life and residual value of 
each asset is reviewed. Any revisions are accounted for prospectively as a change in estimate.

Property, plant and equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated 
depreciation and impairment.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventory is determined 
using the first-in-first-out basis and is net of any rebates and discounts received. Net realisable value is 
estimated using the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date and inventory is written down 
through an obsolescence provision if necessary. 

Page 6
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For the year ended 30 April 2022
Notes to the financial statements
ABN: 51 114 459 582

South Port SLSC

Interest revenue

Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments 
which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
change in value.

Leases

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all of the risks and benefits remain with the 
lessor, are charged as expenses on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease term.

At the end of each annual reporting period, the depreciation method, useful life and residual value of 
each asset is reviewed. Any revisions are accounted for prospectively as a change in estimate.

Property, plant and equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated 
depreciation and impairment.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventory is determined 
using the first-in-first-out basis and is net of any rebates and discounts received. Net realisable value is 
estimated using the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date and inventory is written down 
through an obsolescence provision if necessary. 
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(35,395.31)(64,400.28)Less: Accumulated Depreciation
178,310.00191,573.09Lifesaving Equpiment

(9,028.24)(17,256.87)Less: Accumulated Depreciation
94,815.4695,616.29Gym Equipment

-(541.70)Less: Accumulated Depreciation
12,110.0033,625.31Fixtures and Fittings

(18,133.75)(36,417.44)Less: Accumulated Depreciation
197,476.91208,638.05Competition Equipment

(3,841.20)(8,320.40)Less: Accumulated Depreciation
14,398.0014,398.00Admin and Computer Equipment

Plant and equipment

20,000.0020,000.00Wearing street property
Property

Property, plant and equipment6

$$
20212022Note

For the year ended 30 April 2022
Notes to the financial statements
ABN: 51 114 459 582

South Port SLSC

289,830.72300,323.42

-3.58WEX Mobile Card
3,646.102,524.66Cash at Bank - South Port SLSC Inc

100,335.61100,409.17Business Notice Term Deposit
32,882.2244,390.40Cash at Bank - ANZ 485

101,514.14101,514.14SLS Foundation Investment
50,054.1050,067.92Cash at Bank - ANZ 525

1,398.551,413.55Cash on Hand

Cash and cash equivalents3

675.752,377.69

311.252,377.69GST Refundable
364.50-Trade Debtors

Current

Trade and other receivables4

13,463.0017,338.00

13,454.0017,329.00Stock on Hand
9.009.00Prepayments

Current

Inventories5
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$$
20212022Note

For the year ended 30 April 2022
Notes to the financial statements
ABN: 51 114 459 582

South Port SLSC

484,262.97467,110.04

464,262.97447,110.04

(3,727.90)(7,083.01)Less: Accumulated Depreciation
37,279.0037,279.00Motor Vehicles

2,457.01175.94

1,803.82-Trade Creditors
477.25-WEX Mobile Card
175.94175.94Rounding

Current

Trade and other payables7

785,775.43786,973.21

122,404.231,197.78Net profit

663,371.20785,775.43Retained earnings at the beginning of the financial 
year

Retained earnings8

No matter or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or 
may significantly affect the operations of the association, the results of those operations or the state of 
affairs of the association in future financial years.

Events occurring after the reporting date9

The registered office and principal place of business of the association is:

South Port SLSC
Weatherald Terrace
Port Noarlunga SA 5167

Statutory information10
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Statement by members of committee
ABN: 51 114 459 582

South Port SLSC

Dated 01 July 2022

______________________________________________
Ian Hodgen  (Treasurer)

______________________________________________
Richard Olesinski  (President)

The committee has determined that the association is not a reporting entity and that this special purpose 
financial report should be prepared in accordance with the accounting policies outlined in Note 2 to the 
financial statements.

In the opinion of the committee the financial report:

1. Presents fairly the financial position of South Port SLSC as at 30 April 2022 and its performance for the 
year ended on that date.

2. At the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that South Port SLSC will be able 
to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the committee and is signed for and on behalf of 
the committee by:
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Independent audit report to the members of association, South 
Port SLSC

ABN: 51 114 459 582

South Port SLSC

Responsibility of management and those charged with governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with 
the Associations Incorporation Act 1985, and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report is free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, management is responsible for assessing the association's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the association or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the association's financial reporting process.

Report on the audit of the financial report

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial report, being a special purpose financial report, of South Port 
SLSC (the association), which comprises the balance sheet as at 30 April 2022, the income statement, and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and the statement by 
members of the committee.

In my opinion, the accompanying financial report of the association for the year ended 30 April 2022 is 
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the Associations Incorporation Act 1985.

Basis of opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report section of 
my report. I am independent of the association in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of 
the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of 
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Australia. 
I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the code.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
opinion.

Emphasis of matter - basis of accounting

I draw attention to note 1 of the financial report, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial report 
is prepared to assist the association in meeting the requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act 1985 
and regulations. As a result, the financial report may not be suitable for another purpose. My report is 
intended solely for the association and should not be distributed to or used by parties other than the 
association. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Independent audit report to the members of association, South 
Port SLSC

ABN: 51 114 459 582

South Port SLSC

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this 
financial report.

Accru Harris Orchard

160 Main Road, McLaren Vale SA 5171

01 July 2022
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Certificate by members of committee
ABN: 51 114 459 582

South Port SLSC

Dated 01 July 2022

______________________________________________
Ian Hodgen  (Treasurer)

______________________________________________
Richard Olesinski  (President)

Annual statements give true and fair view of the financial position of incorporated association.

We, being the members of the Committee of the South Port SLSC, certify that -

The statements attached to this certificate give a true and fair view of the financial performance and position 
of South Port SLSC during and at the end of the financial year of the association ending on 30 April 2022.
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